





Promoting a culture of **accountability**

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

AUDITOR-GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA



19日日日 11日



CONTENTS

Preamble to the Constitution	4
Letter to the speaker	5
Auditor-general's message	6
Deputy auditor-general's overview of performance	10



About our report

Significant changes during the reporting period External assurance of information Approval of the report



About the South African national audit office	24
Accountability and reporting	26
Our functions, beneficiaries and products	26
External charters, principles and initiatives that we subscribe to or endorse	28
The way we are organised	29
Conditions under which we operate	32
Strategic risks	34



How we are governed

AGSA executive committee Corporate governance framework **36** 38 39



| SECTION 4

How we add value to stakeholders	44
Value delivered to groups of stakeholders	46
Value and benefits of supreme audit institutions	47
Value creation process	48

The AGSA's #cultureshift2030 strategy	52
Performance information	54
Strategic goal: Insight	57
Strategic goal: Influence	67
Strategic goal: Enforcement (accountability report)	73
Strategic goal: Shift public sector culture	76
Strategic goal: Sustainably	81
Strategic goal: Efficiently	106



Independent assurance practitioner's limited assurance report to Parliament on	
selected key sustainability indicators	112
Audit committee report	116
Remuneration committee report	120



Annexures	122
Acronyms and abbreviations	124
International integrated reporting index	125
GRI content index	126
Sustainable development goals	130

PREAMBLE TO THE CONSTITUTION

We therefore, through our freely elected representatives, adopt this Constitution as the supreme law of the republic to:

- Heal the divisions of the past and establish a society based on democratic values, social justice and fundamental human rights;
- Lay the foundations for a democratic and open society in which government is based on the will of the people and every citizen is equally protected by law;
- Improve the quality of life of all citizens and free the potential of each person; and
- Build a united and democratic South Africa able to take its rightful place as a sovereign state in the family of nations.

We the people of South Africa Recognise the injustices of our past; Honour those who suffered for justice and freedom in our land; Respect those who have worked to build and develop our country; and Believe that South Africa belongs to all who live in it, united in our diversity.



Ms Nosiviwe Noluthando Mapisa-Nqakula Speaker of Parliament PO Box 15 Cape Town 8001

September 2023

Honourable Speaker

Report to the National Assembly in terms of section 10(2)(b) of the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004

It is an honour to submit my integrated annual report, which includes a review of our performance against predetermined objectives and the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2023, as required by our governing legislation.

It gives me great pleasure to announce that the audit committee, established in terms of section 40 of the Public Audit Act, is satisfied with the Auditor-General of South Africa's (AGSA's) audited financial statements and unmodified audit opinion. I respectfully draw your attention to section 41(5) of the Act, which requires that we submit our report within six months of the end of the financial year. I therefore request that this report be tabled in the National Assembly by 30 September 2023.

Yours sincerely

Allelete 28/9/2023

TSAKANI MALULEKE Auditor-General



5

To accomplish great things, we must not only act, but also dream; not only plan, but also believe.

Anatole France

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S MESSAGE

TSAKANI MALULEKE AUDITOR-GENERAL

INTEGRATED ANNUAL

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S MESSAGE

In these times of digital transformation, machine learning, artificial intelligence and large language models, the work in the national audit office requires certain fundamental traits such as diligence, tenacity, quality of work, integrity, and some non-traditional elements such as the ability to dream.

We dared to dream; to transform our environment and imagine a South Africa in which her people trust the integrity of their government, appreciate the accountability and transparency with which public resources are managed and, ultimately, enjoy access to basic service delivery.

To realise the dream, we needed action. We planned our end goal, assessed our environment against the end goal and applied the insight gained to tailor programmes that create value for our stakeholders. I firmly believe that our work positively impacts achieving the ambitions of our country's National Development Plan and supports the improvement of the lives of the people of South Africa.

An important driver of the state's capability to deliver services is the quality and strength of a public service culture and the values embedded within it – particularly those of performance, accountability, transparency and integrity. This premise forms the foundation of our #cultureshift2030 strategy, developed in 2021.

During the 2022-23 reporting period, while executing our mandate, we focused on building the skills, capacity and capabilities required for us to successfully deliver our #cultureshift2030 strategy.

Accountability ecosystem

The strategy encompasses creating an accountability ecosystem. We formally outlined the concept as a network of all the roleplayers that have a mandate or responsibility to drive public sector accountability.

We actively encourage each roleplayer to leverage on their mutually reinforcing connections to help shift the culture within the public sector to one of active performance, accountability, transparency and integrity. We highlighted the strategic connections between the citizen's service delivery expectations, the mandates of the various responsible players in government and society, and the available accountability mechanisms. We also highlighted their effectiveness in driving transparent, responsive and prudent public financial management aimed at improving the wellbeing of South Africans, as embedded in our Constitution.

I believe that regular and prudent collaboration, information sharing and contributions throughout the accountability ecosystem will lead to a shift in public sector culture. This positive influence could result in effective service delivery that will help better the lives of the people of South Africa.

To monitor the integrity of our accountability ecosystem, we will also assess the network and contributors annually. This evaluation will become an integral part of the value we deliver to our stakeholders.

How we added value through our work

The rigorous scrutiny of the accounting records and other related information to support financial statements and performance reports of approximately 1 000 institutions that we audited resulted in two general reports being tabled in Parliament. These serve as a state-of-governance account of how our government – at all three tiers – has spent taxpayers' money during the audited period, provide a comprehensive analysis of the audit outcomes and represent the main source of insight into the stewardship of public funds in the country. This year, our general reports went further to include a particular focus on service delivery.

Along with our key recommendations and government's commitments, the insight into the impact of these results is meant to stimulate understanding and encourage a shift to a culture of accountability.

The insight garnered from the real-time audit on the use of the funds allocated for relief of damages caused by the floods in KwaZulu-Natal and the Eastern Cape elicited an acknowledgement by government that it was ill-prepared to manage disasters. Extensive interactions with all our stakeholders gave our reports the necessary attention and influence to compel action. Government made commitments that included stopping irregular contracts, withholding payments to suppliers until the work was completed, negotiating prices and applying other measures to minimise leakage and maximise the use of public funds on actual disaster relief for the people affected by the floods. We monitor these commitments on an ongoing basis.

Our relevant and actionable insight also focused on specific areas of public spending, especially those that make up the bulk of the budget and have the power to bring improvement in the lives of ordinary South Africans.

We issued a performance audit report on the rehabilitation of derelict and ownerless mines, which highlighted the health and safety concerns for local communities that live around these mines. The strength of our messages increased with the application of targeted data analytics. We tested new tools that enabled us to analyse vast volumes of data for greater efficiency.

We continued to enable oversight by sharing the audit outcomes and providing rich insight to drive understanding and action, and are particularly pleased to observe that our investment in enhancing the capabilities of portfolio committees and committee support staff is yielding positive results.

Implementing our extended powers

In 2022-23 we reached our target to implement our material irregularity process at 202 public sector institutions that we audit in national and provincial government, and 170 in local government. We are on track to implement this process at all 879 institutions that we audit in the 2024-25 financial year.

So far, the material irregularity process prevented R655 million in financial loss, while R164 million was recovered with a further R820 million in the process of recovery. Importantly, the process also ushered in a change that saw internal controls improve, supplier contracts being stopped where money was being lost, and consequences for wrongdoing. At the same time, we enhanced our material irregularity methodology and guidance to streamline the process and strengthened our collaboration and relationships with public bodies such as the Special Investigating Unit and the Office of the Public Protector. Special material irregularity reports provided full transparency of the resolution status of the material irregularities for national, provincial and local government.

Our main challenges

An important pillar of our independence is our financial viability. Throughout the years it has been sustained by sound financial administration, strict cash flow management and good internal controls, systems and processes. However, our work and our viability is dependent on the overall status of the fiscus.

The persistent lack of prudence in spending, inadequate financial management and inadequate accountability for financial performance erode the limited public funds available, and the scope for beneficial spending on service delivery is severely limited.

The increased number of auditees in financial distress is compounded by the rise in the public's demands for service delivery and accountability, protests and destruction of public assets. This makes it imperative that accounting officers and authorities do everything in their power to get the most value from every rand spent and to manage every aspect of their finances with diligence and care.

One of the consequences is that auditees impacted by the status of their public finances are unable to pay audit fees, which in turn threatens our sustainability. Debt owed to us is ever increasing, which restricts our plans to modernise our tools and develop our staff. Our leadership pays constant attention to this challenge.

Over the past year, we have dealt with litigation brought against us in relation to our audit work and related reports.

Pushbacks and litigation often compromise our ability to meet our legislated deadlines and cause us to deploy scarce resources towards legal fees.

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S MESSAGE

These challenges to our work present opportunities for key roleplayers in the accountability ecosystem to not only participate in resolving disputes, but to actively shift towards a culture of responsible public financial management, effective performance, greater transparency and better accountability.

We have revised our audit dispute resolution mechanism, which is succinct and allows for greater leadership visibility through a tiered escalation approach. Ultimately, our desire is that the new process will significantly reduce the appetite to litigate against our audit outcomes. While it is too soon to express a conclusive view on the effectiveness of the revised dispute resolution mechanism, I am encouraged by the early signs that it may promote a more constructive engagement with those who raise disputes.

Our year of transition also presented a unique performance challenge. In our ambition to build a strong basis for our #cultureshift2030 strategy, we defined a set of internal targets to develop the requisite knowledge, skills, capacity and tools. While we achieved the commitments outlined in our strategic plan, we fell short of achieving some important internal milestones. We are determined to erase this shortfall in performance and proceed with implementing the strategy in the identified value chains and sectors. The long-term approach will also demonstrate the transparency of our choices, the allocation of limited organisational resources to auditing what matters and the expected impact on service delivery as the vehicle to improve people's lives.

We will strengthen our specialist expertise, deepen our insight in selected fields, and fine-tune our audit messages and recommendations to increase our impact on the improvement of audit outcomes and, consequently, on improving people's lived realities.

Conclusion

In daring to dream, we shifted our own culture, realising that our work cannot be done in isolation. To succeed in transforming our environment, we must collaborate in an accountability ecosystem with common purpose for the benefit and wellbeing of our people.

We call on all relevant stakeholders to share our dream and join us on the journey towards a better South Africa.

Calube 2

TSAKANI MALULEKE AUDITOR-GENERAL

Future audit focus

While individual audit plans have always been in place, we have begun to align our audits with a comprehensive long-term strategic audit plan to ensure that our audit messages and insight are consistent, relevant and wide-ranging, and have impact.

Supreme audit institutions have a critical role to play in the fight against corruption. We have been inspired by the spirit and the outcomes of the Judicial commission of inquiry into allegations of state capture and have made an institutional commitment to intensify our collaboration with other organs of state to prevent fraud, corruption and other forms of impropriety. In the spirit of leading by example, all our internal functions have implemented best practice emanating from the report.



INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



To drive progress, we began identifying key performance indicators, deliverables and desired outputs that would allow us to achieve the required level of readiness. The pursuit and alignment of those priorities took longer than expected, and our internal scorecard, which is in addition to our commitments to Parliament, was only finalised in the second half of the performance year. This shortened the time available for reaching some of the desired outcomes and outputs.

While we were able to achieve most of our commitments outlined in our 2022-25 strategic plan, we were not so successful in achieving a few important internal milestones, mostly in the areas of financial and human capital.

Ensuring our financial independence

Our financial viability is paramount for our independence as a supreme audit institution. We therefore follow an approved funding model that ensures sound financial administration, well managed cash flow, and strong internal controls, systems and processes. We produced a fair set of financial results, especially in the context of the country's financial constraints.

Our actual audit income for the year was R4 583 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 4%. We contained the increase in audit fees using efficiencies derived from re-allocating staff between national and provincial audit units (resource pooling) and continuous improvement in productivity and recoverability rates (own hours' revenue). Resource pooling is being institutionalised, realising R221 million (2021-22: R120 million) in audit income.

The introduction of the recoverable Ahluma centre was an interesting initiative, which created opportunities for retained audit seniors or audit clerks to work with multiple business units and gain a diverse skillset. They, in turn, conducted some of our audits, eliminating the need to use private audit firms. In its three months of operation, the Ahluma centre helped us save R20 million on outsourcing.

Cost optimisation

In the face of a challenging economic and fiscal environment, the AGSA continued to demonstrate a steadfast commitment to prudent financial management and resilience. We have achieved a notable increase in our net surplus of R263 million, compared to R40 million in the previous year.

However, it is essential to provide context for this increase, as it was primarily achieved by making strategic decisions to weather economic uncertainties.

A key measure of cost optimisation was a challenging but necessary decision to not pay our dedicated staff performance bonuses, allowing us to allocate these resources towards strengthening our capital expenditure programme. The programme will be an investment in digital transformation initiatives to empower us to harness operational efficiencies and enhance the quality of our audit services.

Cost optimisation strategies also resulted in a 3% reduction in operating expenditure. These measures collectively underscore our commitment to prudent financial stewardship.

We remain committed to creating an environment where our employees are rewarded for their hard work and dedication, and are confident that these investments will ultimately benefit both our clients and our team as we continue to evolve and grow.

We will apply to retain the net surplus in line with the Public Audit Act (PAA) so that it can be invested as indicated above.

Review of our funding model

The objectives of the #cultureshift2030 strategy, rapid changes in the technological and communications aspects of business, and human capital needs require novel financial decisions. We completed the review of our funding model as prompted by our oversight committee and considered possible improvements. This project will be concluded after due engagement with Scoag. Our intention is to base our future audit fees on the value delivered per audit, or audit products and services, and not only on hours spent on the audits.

In brief, our financial viability and independence have been preserved and we are in a good position to navigate the financial challenges we believe lie ahead for us. Improving business efficiency, prudent financial management and delivering value to our stakeholders remain the ways which will allow us to be financially independent.

Challenges to our financial independence

The collection of audit fees remains a challenge and endangers our financial viability, and in turn our financial independence. We are owed R1 080 million. Although this is a minimal 1,9% year-on-year increase in debtors, it represents 24% of our total revenue. Worse, 34% of this amount is owed for 120 days or more, mainly by auditees in financial distress.

Debt collection receives continuous attention by the leadership at all levels. In this financial year, we formed a credit watchlist committee that focused on managing accounts that are 90 days past their due date and suggesting creative yet effective collection techniques.

Our few successes demonstrated that we still have a way to go to exhaust debt collection options:

- tighter collection targets and instalment agreements led to stemming the rise in local government debt
- engagements with the National Treasury in line with the provisions of the PAA resulted in a payment against the audit fees shortfall of 1% debtors
- engagements with provincial stakeholders allowed us to receive payment from the provincial treasury in lieu of fees owed to us by municipalities.

Collecting through litigation and ringfencing agreements also continued to be effective.

Post-retirement medical aid liability

We concluded our effort to reduce the post-retirement medical aid liability by offering to buy out that liability from 337 members (91%), 258 of whom accepted the offer. This allowed us to reduce the post-retirement medical aid obligation from R49 million to R13 million as of 31 March 2023.

Resourcing for success

The success of our strategy depends on the availability of staff with the required work ethic, knowledge, capabilities, competencies, skills and professionalism and directing them towards activities that not only enhance but directly impact shifting the culture in the public sector.

We continued to implement processes that have proven successful in talent acquisition. We have, however, observed systemic changes in the environment that forced us to review our resourcing strategies. The proliferation of collaborative tools and emergence of new players in the auditing and accounting labour market that offer hybrid or entirely work from home conditions, as well as the shrinking pool of candidates with a Certificate in the Theory of Accounting (CTA) posed a challenge throughout the financial year. We had to make changes in the selection of institutions offering CTA studies and introduce a mid-year intake to ensure the availability of young professionals on the audits.

To build additional internal capacity that is also financially feasible, we formed the Ahluma centre, which provided the additional resources for our audits. We are proud to reflect on the number of benefits that the centre offered to the participants in addition to helping our financial position, such as access to study support and leave for preparation for professional qualifications, exposure to junior management responsibilities, career progression when internal opportunities become available, continued care through the employee wellness programme, and most of all, secure employment during specific periods.

We will monitor the realisation of this project in the coming years as we see a possibility of investing in capacity through this centre.

Professionalisation

In the midst of many challenges, we achieved a number of successes in the continued professionalisation of the office. We were recognised as the employer of choice in the public sector for the third consecutive year in 2022, a recognition that we cherish.

A total of 239 of our candidates successfully passed the Assessment of Professional Competence (APC), making us the third largest contributor of successful candidates in the country, i.e. 9% of successful CTA candidates come from our training programme. This proportion has increased steadily over the past four years.

During the 2022-23 financial year we distributed R5,4 million to 36 academically gifted young people and provided opportunities to persons with disabilities, as well as candidates selected from our schools support programme, and AGSA employee family members. We expect them to join our workforce in the next few years.

We contributed R11 497 125 to Thuthuka for the 2023 academic year. In return, 32 Thuthuka candidates began their articles with the AGSA in 2023.

Currently, we employ a sizeable cohort of audit professionals – 1 350 in total, with more than half of them (776) being chartered accountants.





Employee wellness

Creating an environment that promotes engagement and contentment allows our employees to flourish and achieve their full potential, for their own, and our benefit. We allocated sufficient resources to understand the needs of our staff ranging from physical, to emotional, financial, mental, social, career and community purpose aspects.

We developed holistic interventions for the various levels in the organisation that could provide our staff with the tools to help them thrive, be resilient, safe and productive, and to improve their overall health and wellbeing.

One of the overarching topics that we dealt with was the fear of not delivering, specifically in a rapidly changing world of work paired with an ambitious strategy that requires an internal culture shift and readiness, leading to work-related anxiety, for employees and their leaders.

Our programmes offer personalised support that aids their mental health and holistic wellbeing, aimed at embedding a culture of value and care for our employees.



Contribution to transformation

We have maintained a level 1 broad-based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) recognition status for the fifth year. Our success is attributed to ongoing commitment from our staff and leadership on this transformation agenda. We provided financial support to the value of R3 million and business support in various forms to help qualifying enterprises overcome obstacles and increase their market competitiveness, and ultimately to create jobs and become sustainable.

In the past year, 24 small firms joined our programme, while one firm from the previous cohort graduated from the programme and became a supplier of audit skills.

Improving our technological capabilities

In the current swiftly developing technological aspect of our life, we have no choice but to ensure that we have adequate tools and capabilities to execute our mandate and to ensure efficiency of our operations.

The digital transformation strategy approved by the executive committee gives us a full assessment of our needs and charts a careful way to the acquisition of badly needed modern tools and technologies for the auditors as well as for running our business sustainably.

Our audit software, TeamMate, has been upgraded numerous times, and the time has come to replace it with a new agile way to execute audit procedures faster. This will allow us to assess more available data and extract deep, unique, actionable insights that we need to pass on to the relevant roleplayers in the accountability ecosystem for execution.

Our audit software project progressed well, and we are looking forward to deploying this innovative tool. As this will require major financial investment, we will be looking at adequate ways to fund the project.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Overall, we are looking at automating business operations, implementing software robotics that mimic user behaviour and connects multiple fragmented systems and sub-processes through automation, strong business intelligence and analytics, and migrating relevant applications and data to the cloud with minimum disruption to business operations. An example of the way forward in our business environment is our first robot, Imbewu, which allows us to allocate daily deposits within the space of a few minutes.

To achieve our ambitions, we finalised the restructuring of our information technology (IT) space. In line with best practice, we have a digital technology office built on four key pillars of supporting and enabling the business: becoming a data-driven organisation, strengthening our core operations, improving our customer and user experience, and automating our business to bring about efficiencies.

As we invest in and transform our operations, we will be strict in evaluating the realisation of the benefits envisaged at the start of this programme. However, when our programme is implemented, we expect to see immense benefits for our operations and audit processes.

Leadership alignment

We made the achievement and practice of leadership alignment one of the top priorities for our transition into the implementation of the #cultureshift2030 strategy.

Through various dedicated interventions, our leadership team built its skills to conduct healthy debates, actively support one another and take collective ownership of the successful implementation of our strategic change.

This allowed us to make a number of important operational decisions ranging from approval and implementation of audit methodologies, vital functional strategies, such as our digital transformation and financial sustainability strategies, implementation of latest standards. In February we held our Leadership Summit under the theme #cultureshift2030: Getting hard things done during which we engaged with our cohort of senior managers and grappled with ideas important for the realisation of our strategic aspirations. We took stock of the first year of implementation and lessons learnt to lay the foundation for the next seven years ahead. The novel ideas shared during the event were incorporated into the development of our long-term scorecard.

It takes continuous effort to keep everyone on the same level of understanding and commitment and we are prepared to continue our investment in leadership alignment across the management levels, as we firmly believe that this is the only way to achieve our objectives over the long strategic horizon in front of us.

Engagement with staff and internal culture shift

Equally important for the success of our aspirations is the continuous engagement with staff, thus engendering better commitment and ensuring alignment with our strategy.

The deputy auditor-general's roadshows provided opportunity to every staff member to have a direct access to the team that worked on the formulation of the #cultureshift2030 strategy and engage on its intention, desired impact and most importantly, on how the organisation would go about the successful implementation of the strategy.

These engagements laid a good foundation for the cascading of the strategic targets and initiatives. In our journey to build trust and demonstrate transparency of the leadership decisions, we also held difficult conversations with staff unpacking ethical breaches or in instances where we have had to make unpopular but vitally important decisions.



INTEGRATED ANNUAL

REPORT 2022-23

THE DEPUTY AUDITOR-GENERAL'S OVERVIEW

While these actions are good practice, they are also a deliberate effort to instil a new organisational culture, one that puts caring for each other, building trust, and doing the right thing among its core values. This demonstrates the importance of our collective commitment towards building an enabling and supportive environment that sets the foundation of the #cultureshift2030 strategy.

A culture that is consistent, practised daily and conducive to the implementation of the strategy, can only be reached through strong leadership and unwavering commitment by staff. We therefore developed a bespoke culture change programme using a trust model that focuses on the individual, team, and the organisation to embed and strengthen the desired internal culture. At an employee level, personal interests are captured and managed through our declarations system. The compliance rate for the 2022-23 financial year is 99,7%, with the outstanding declarations related to employees on maternity, sick and unpaid leave, who are expected to comply upon their return to duty.

It is important to not only build a strong internal ethical environment but to also capitalise on our placement in the industry to influence ethical behaviour in the auditing profession and in the entire environment in which we operate. Hence, our programme also included ethics engagements with the firms contracted to perform audits on behalf of the AGSA and will be continued to ensure adherence to nonnegotiable ethical standards and behaviours.

System of Quality Management (SOQM)

Final Pronouncemer December 2020

International Standard on Quality Management

International Standard on Quality Management 1 (Previously International Standard on Quality Control 1)

Quality Management for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services Engagements



Strengthening our ethics posture and risk management

Running an ethical national audit office is the underlying premise to our success, and sustaining an impeccable level of ethical behaviour is a continuous effort. The International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA) and International Standard for Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAI) 130 inform our ethical stance and are the foundation of our ethics management programme.

The current ethics initiatives have allowed the organisation to instil adequate ethics risk management processes and to reach an AA maturity rating as independently assessed through the Ethics Monitor tool. We strongly intend to reach the ultimate maturity rating of AAA.

Having to deal with an ethical breach of a senior executive in the past year, we have executed our commitment to enhance leadership capabilities by strengthening their ethical resolve through providing timeous intelligence on ethical misconduct and breaches, as well as strengthening their capacity to withstand ethical threats and respond appropriately to the complexities of the environment within which the organisation operates.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

One way to ensure the ethical posture of the organisation and the position of the supreme audit institution in the society is the quality of the audit work. The outcomes of our audits attract significant attention from our auditees, oversight and from the general public. We are mindful of the reality that our products and processes may be subject to increased scrutiny before the courts. We therefore make quality of audits our priority.

A new international standard for audit quality management, the International System of Quality Management (ISQM), came into effect on 15 December 2022. To comply with and adopt the standard by the prescribed timeline, we developed an effective system of quality management and approached the implementation of ISQM on a project management basis. While we did experience challenges, our massive effort allowed us to become ISQM compliant ahead of the deadline.

We are proud to announce that our quality management assessment committee (QMAC) allocated a rating of 84% compliance with engagement quality standards for the 2022-23 performance year based on the assessment of 64 audit files.

Overall, there has been a gradual and sustained improvement in the quality outcomes over the past five years, which can be attributed to our investment in specific initiatives that have been implemented and embedded in the organisation over the years.

We continually look at ways to sustain and improve our audit quality, with the main effort focused on audit quality indicators as an early warning system, proactive quality reviews on audits with elevated risks, and a strong remediation process. This ensures that we have relevant, reliable, and timely information about the design, implementation, and operation of the SOQM. This allows us to take action to prevent weaknesses from reoccurring. During 2022-23, and as a consequence of the introduction of the ISQM 1 and 2, we reviewed and enhanced some policies and procedures – including our risk management policy – primarily to ensure that organisational risk management processes remain robust and proactively responsive to emerging environmental factors.

We identified six major risks to the achievement of our mandate and our strategy which form our strategic risk profile. Our audit committee, which has the ultimate responsibility of approving the strategic risks profile, has agreed with our views.

While we run our business according to best practice, we provide a full opportunity to all stakeholders to lodge complaints. The management of all complaints has been elevated and we thus eradicated the backlog from the previous years.

Our whistleblowing platform remains an effective channel to report complaints relating to the conduct of the AGSA employees and the office administration. This is enabled by the whistleblowing platform being completely anonymous.

A discipline that we have developed fully is the management of our legal risks, as our ability to sustainably impact the lives of South Africans relies to a great extent on our independence. Attacks on our independence manifest in various forms. One is to disrupt our work and bring the credibility of our products into question. Our legal team is tasked with the responsibility to predict, prevent, identify and mitigate all legal risks that threaten our independence.

We are pleased to note that across the organisation and its various structures, there is an established culture of risk consciousness and intelligence. We believe that our collective attitude to risk management will safeguard the organisation and ensure its sustainability into the future.

Risk management

The organisation's risk management processes are an integral and a fundamental tool for enabling organisational objectives and delivering on our strategy.

Conclusion

Running a supreme audit institution is a complex task and requires the involvement of all executives and staff. It is my conclusion that the AGSA has expended all the effort to implement our strategy and to prove that clean administration is achievable. After the work done during our transitional phase we are in a good position to advance our strategy into the identified sectors and value chains.

We are looking forward to demonstrating the results of our strategy, and ultimately, to see improvement in the public sector that favourably impact the lives of our people.

To my colleagues, I thank you for giving your all towards realising our cause and the execution of our mandate. I could not have wished for a better team.

VONANI CHAUKE DEPUTY AUDITOR-GENERAL



17



ABOUT OUR REPORT

About our report	18
Significant changes during the reporting period	21
External assurance of information	21
Approval of the report	23





Our integrated annual report represents our account to Parliament and the people of South Africa on the fulfilment of our constitutional mandate and our promise to strengthen our country's democracy by enabling oversight, accountability and governance in the public sector through auditing, thereby building public confidence.

The report is the result of a systematic reporting process that involves various levels in the organisation, making it a truly collective effort. Our executive committee leads the reporting process; its members are also active contributors to the content of the report, demonstrating the importance of accountability and transparency practised in the national audit office.

Reporting period

This integrated annual report provides a concise and balanced account of our performance from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 against the commitments outlined in the 2022-25 Strategic plan and budget.

Where relevant for the formulation of a complete view of reported matter, some material events after the date of the financial year and up to the approval of this report by the auditor-general on 27 September 2023 have also been reflected in the report.

Integrated approach to materiality, reporting principles and practice

Our integrated approach to reporting is a result of applying integrated thinking to defining the imperatives for creating long-term, sustainable value for our stakeholders. This report covers the performance of all AGSA business units, including our head office and our offices across the nine provinces.

The report reflects the requirements of our governing legislation, the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA), and the principles of the King IV code on corporate governance and reporting. The financial statements are prepared according to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the PAA.

Our material focus and the process to determine the content of this report

We identify issues that have the potential to impact our sustainability, i.e. our ability to create, preserve or erode value for our stakeholders. We prioritise those with the greatest relevance in our operating context as material matters. These matters generally relate to our financial and performance management, as well as the risks and opportunities that inform the scenarios we may face in the future.

We assess the matter continually to ensure that we remain relevant, to inform our strategy, the movement of our six capitals and our performance targets.

The material topics reported in this report were defined by our executive committee in the strategic commitments made to Parliament, which are based on our long-term strategy and outlined in detail in the AGSA's 2022-25 Strategic plan and budget. The material aspects are applicable to all AGSA business units and all our key stakeholders. We therefore continuously engage with our stakeholders to find out what is important to them so that we can respond to their needs.

We did not need any restatements from our previous integrated annual reports.



Financial statements

The report includes the audited financial statements and the reports of the remuneration and audit committees.

Sustainability reporting

The 'core' option of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) guidelines for sustainable reporting and the International Integrated Reporting <IR> framework both informed the content and format of this report. Therefore, this report meets the information and reporting requirements of both the <IR> and the GRI standards 'core' option.

Governance and risk management

Disclosure about all governance structures, as well as a discussion around our strategic risk profile are also included in this report.



ABOUT OUR REPORT



Forward-looking statements

The report contains certain forward-looking statements on our financial condition, performance results and operations. They are based on our current beliefs and expectations of future events. These forecasts involve risk and uncertainty as they relate to events and depend on circumstances that are expected to occur in the future, many of which could be beyond our control. There are various factors that could cause actual results or developments to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

Significant changes during the reporting period

The 2022-23 financial year was used to prepare our environment for the implementation of our #cultureshift2030 strategy, which will guide our activities over the next six years in pursuit of highimpact outcomes. To drive and deepen public sector accountability, our messages were centred on the roles and responsibilities of various players in the accountability ecosystem with the aim of changing the public sector culture.

The revised standard on risk assessment (ISA 315) required a major change in methodology and application. The changes were implemented in the working papers for 2022-23 and the development of the training material was completed.

External assurance of information

We adhere to the principles of good governance. Our combined assurance model defines the various roleplayers that provide assurance to the AGSA, which include management, internal specialists, actuaries, the independent QMAC, internal audit, external audit and the audit committee.

An independent external auditor audits our financial statements, financial management and performance information, and provides limited assurance on the selected sustainability performance indicators.

The assurance on this report was conducted according to the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 (Revised), issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB). The external auditor's report is on page 125 of this report.

Relationship between the organisation and the assurance providers

The external auditor is completely independent of the organisation. The firm does not receive any allocation of audits to be done on behalf of the AGSA.

INTEG

21

ABOUT OUR REPORT

Scoag, which oversees the AGSA's work on behalf of Parliament, appoints the external auditor for five years (renewable once) and confirms its appointment every year.

The audit committee facilitates contracting the external auditor on behalf of Scoag in a process that is fair, equitable, transparent, efficient and effective and in line with our transformation agenda.

The audit committee also examines the auditor's capacity and competence to provide assurance on the sustainability information it reports on as part of its annual report to Scoag.

Feedback on our report

We welcome feedback on our integrated reporting to ensure that we continue to disclose information that is pertinent to all our stakeholders. Should you wish to provide written feedback, kindly use our email address agsa@agsa.co.za or our X (previously known as twitter) account @AuditorGen_SA.





ABOUT OUR REPORT



Approval of the report

The deputy auditor-general and auditor-general have applied themselves to ensure the integrity of the 2022-23 Integrated annual report. They have considered the completeness of the material aspects addressed in the report and the reliability of the reported performance information presented based on the combined assurance process.

Accordingly, the deputy auditor-general and the auditor-general are satisfied that the 2022-23 Integrated annual report provides a fair and balanced account of the AGSA's performance on those material matters that have been assessed as having a bearing on the AGSA's capacity to create value.

We are also satisfied that the delegation of authority framework has contributed to role clarity and the effective exercise of authority and responsibilities by the relevant individuals and committees. This report reflects the requirements of our governing legislation, the PAA, and has been prepared according to the GRI standards' 'core' option and the <IR> framework.

It also reflects the principles of the King IV code on corporate governance and reporting. The report, which includes the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, has been approved by the deputy auditor-general and the auditor-general.

Vonani Chauke DEPUTY AUDITOR-GENERAL

Alulete 28/9/203

TSAKANI MALULEKE AUDITOR-GENERAL







Accountability and reporting	26
Our functions, beneficiaries and products	26
External charters, principles and initiatives that we subscribe to or endorse	28
The way we are organised	29
Conditions under which we operate	32
Strategic risks	34





Our mandate and legal form

The AGSA is South Africa's supreme audit institution, with a mandate stemming from chapter 9 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996. This makes us one of six state institutions that support constitutional democracy. The Constitution entrenches the AGSA's independence, subject only to the Constitution and the law. In turn, the Constitution requires us to be impartial, and to exercise our powers and perform our functions without fear, favour or prejudice.

The AGSA is an organ of state as defined by sub-section 239(b)(i) of the Constitution, has full legal capacity and acts as a juristic person.

Our functions, beneficiaries and products

Section 188 of the Constitution describes our functions and chapters 2 and 3 of the PAA regulate the powers necessary to perform them. By law, we audit and report on how the government spends the South African taxpayers' money.

Every year, we audit national and provincial government departments, certain public entities, municipalities and municipal entities (our auditees). We issue audit reports that provide them with the outcomes of our audits and emphasise material irregularities where we find them.

Accountability and reporting

We account to the National Assembly by tabling our annual report, financial statements and the audit report on those financial statements. This requirement is governed by sub-section 10(2) (b) of the PAA.



Definitions

According to section 1(1) of the PAA, a material irregularity (MI) occurs when:

- a person does not comply with or contravenes legislation, engages in fraud or theft, or violates their entrusted duty
- this action can or does result in a significant financial loss, the misuse or loss of a significant public resource or substantial harm to a public sector institution or the general public
- the action is identified during an audit performed under the PAA

When audit outcomes include material irregularities, we can either refer them to public bodies for investigation or include recommendations to address them in the audit report. In the case of the latter, if our recommendations are not implemented, we take binding remedial action. Where the accounting officer or authority does not implement the remedial action, the auditor-general can issue a certificate of debt to recover money lost from accounting officers or authorities.

Definitions

Binding remedial action directs the accounting officer or authority to address cases where our recommendations are not implemented. In the case of a financial loss, the accounting officer must calculate the loss and recover it from the person responsible.

A certificate of debt is a certificate issued in terms of section 5B(1) of the PAA when remedial action has not been taken. It requires the accounting officer or authority to repay the specified financial loss to the state. We undertake two main types of audits: regularity audits and discretionary audits such as performance audits, special audits and investigations.

Definitions

Regularity audit is our mandated examination and reporting on an auditee's financial statements. It also examines the auditee's compliance with relevant legislation and its reporting on its performance against its own predetermined objectives.

Specialised audit services is a division of the AGSA that nurtures and provides specialised skills and techniques for in-depth audits based on the auditee risk profile. These audits can be standalone or integrated with regularity audits and other discretionary audits. The three specialised audit services business units are investigations, information system audit and performance audit.

All our reports are meant to help the legislature call the executive to account for the way they manage public funds. Auditees include our regularity audit reports in their respective annual reports, which they table in their relevant legislature (National Assembly, provincial legislatures or municipal councils). The reports may also be made available to bodies with a direct interest in the particular audit and to any other legislature or organ of state if we consider it in the public interest to do so.

In addition to these audit reports, we publish general reports in which we analyse the outcomes of the regularity audits at national, provincial and municipal levels, and special reports that analyse our findings from real-time or other standalone discretionary audits.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

External charters, principles and initiatives that we subscribe to or endorse

The AGSA is an active member of the International Organisation of Supreme Audit Institutions (Intosai). We lead the capacity building committee, which is Intosai's advocate and custodian for supreme audit institutions' capacity development. The AGSA participates in several of Intosai's working groups aimed at exchanging ideas, knowledge and experience between its members as well as working on finding common solutions to identified challenges. We host the secretariat of the African Organisation of English-speaking Supreme Audit Institutions (Afrosai-e), a regional chapter of Intosai.

We subscribe to the following standards and principles:



Scale and complexity of our audit work



As part of our mandate we audit a large number of clients, each with different complexities based on the nature of their business.

Scale of the organisation

At 31 March 2023



3 688 people

including trainee auditors and those on short-term contracts



R2 069 million Total assets

R4 583 millionactual revenue from1 003 regularity audits2 discretionary audits

Structure of the AGSA

The way we are organised

The AGSA is based in South Africa and delivers services that benefit the people of our country.

By implication, the work that we do in enabling good governance and accountability in the public sector, in creating professional public auditors, developing best practice in public auditing and running a supreme audit institution benefits the global community as well.

Our head office is in Pretoria. We have a regional office in each of the nine provinces to ensure that we are accessible to our clients and deliver our services in the most efficient and effective manner.

The business operations of some of our auditees require us to audit elsewhere in the world.







Organisation's supply chain

In line with the principles prescribed in the Constitution, we maintain a procurement and provisioning system that is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-effective.

Audit contracts awarded

As part of our business model, we outsource some of our audit work. The firms that audit on our behalf are appointed using a transparent selection process that considers their size, location, expertise and quality of audit work.

The appointment process also incorporates the principles of transformation to develop, grow and advance black chartered accountants.

Outsourced work included pre-issuance reviews, regularity audits, information systems audits and performance audits.



2022-23 spend on core audit work by private firms

Our vendor and service providers vetting system features enhance probity checks on all prospective service providers, vendors and their directors. In our quest to lead by example, we apply key principles emanating from the work of the Commission of Inquiry into State Capture, being pedantic in detecting possible conflicts of interest.

During the reporting period, we conducted a thorough review of all service providers and vendors registered on our system. We improved the status of our database by deactivating 1 832 dormant suppliers, which resulted in a lean, easily manageable supplier database.

We safeguard against paying a high premium for goods and services received. Our legal team negotiates all contracts with a value above R1 million.

Our digital transformation strategy is based on the phasing in of new audit tools and technologies that will allow us to audit more efficiently and generate unique audit insight for the benefit of our stakeholders.

Major procurement processes include our audit software replacement, DataSnipper tool, enterprise-wide project management office system, financial strategy and funding model development and the managed security services for the AGSA's IT environment.

Conditions under which we operate

Our work is informed by our environment and the changes that have the potential to affect the delivery of our mandate. Our operating environment has undergone significant developments in many aspects of life and business locally and globally. These aspects were:

Insufficient improvement in audit outcomes

The limited progress in improving audit outcomes, especially at auditees that are critical for driving service delivery, results in a pronounced, negative impact on the people of South Africa. These trends are most evident at local government level and in state-owned enterprises – something that is of significant concern to the AGSA, Parliament and citizens.

Audit outcomes relate directly to the work we do, and lack of improvement has an indirect effect on how the public and government perceive our relevance and effectiveness. The reflection on how to enhance our relevance and effectiveness has formed the basis of our #cultureshift2030 strategy, which targets improvement of public sector culture.

Persistent fraud and corruption

In our daily work we are faced with the continuous misuse of state resources. The freedom of speech in our country has allowed the media to highlight numerous cases of fraud and corruption.

Many civil society organisations take up the fight against the spillage of public resources within the scope of their work. The AGSA is determined to provide insight and transparency on indicators of fraud, corruption and state capture that we detect through our audits.

This will allow our stakeholders to continue holding government accountable, which in the long term should lead to improved state performance and betterment of lives of people. Decline in the country's economic outlook and its financial impact on us

South Africa's economic outlook has declined, mainly as a result of the pandemic. This has seen a stagnation in our low global economic ratings and presents government with fiscal constraints to delivering its programmes and generating revenue, especially at local government level, which exerts continued pressure on audit fees.

The war in Ukraine carried significant risks to the global, and by implication, the South African economy that had not recovered from the covid-19 pandemic. It has directly led to higher oil and grain prices, which has had adverse implications for price inflation in the country. The high inflation erodes the disposable income of consumers who already struggle to feed their families and meet commitments to financial institutions. This will make it harder for municipalities to collect customer debt for services rendered.

Collecting outstanding debt, predominantly from local government and ailing state-owned enterprises, remains a challenge. We expect this trend to increase given the loss of revenue throughout the pandemic and the Russia-Ukraine war.

Furthermore, we expect to see deterioration of service delivery at local government level specifically because of the lack of sufficient financial resources.

Complex audit environment

Our state-owned enterprises audit portfolio has grown over the years, increasing the number of specialised and complex environments that we audit. Although the pace of this change has exerted pressure on our resources, it has led to intensive training and learning for our staff.

Currently, we continue to invest in understanding the audit environment and scope of Eskom with the intention of signing off the Eskom audit once we have had a chance to create the necessary capacity and capability for such a complex audit. Conducting real-time audits has increased our need for specialised audit skills, especially investigations skills. We have experienced some challenges in recruiting these skills and capacity due to the limited availability of specialised skills in the market. We continue to mitigate this challenge through internal initiatives such as training, internships, promoting suitably skilled officials and employing outsourced resources on fixed-term contracts.

Implementing the material irregularity process intensified our need for greater skills and capacity to perform high-quality audits. While our initial focus was to master the implementation of our extended power, now our attention is towards the identification of impactful material irregularities, i.e. those that once resolved will result in improving the lives of South African people.

The poor quality of the annual financial and performance reports submitted by many of our auditees has a negative impact on the timeframe and quality of our audits because additional work is needed to respond to the risks posed by misstatements. Persistently we see internal control environments that are inadequately managed. Weak preventative controls and the disregard for our audit messages increase the audit risk profile.

Audit contestations have become a feature of our environment and we will continue to track such cases to understand how we can engage with the respective stakeholders to pre-empt pushbacks. A possible increase in contestations resulting from our enhanced mandate could pose a threat to our staff and an increase in judicial scrutiny of our reports. We use various internal platforms to support our staff to maintain their ethical conduct and make the right choices. Increased risk of cyberattacks and new technologies

With cyberattacks on the rise globally, we recognise the potential for data breaches and have taken steps to protect our information from such threats. Phishing attempts continued though they were identified early and contained by our information and communication technology specialists. We will continue to intensify our information management and security measures to secure the information collected during our audits.

Lastly, the environment has seen an influx of new technologies, specifically the pervasive use of digital tools, robotic process automation, machine learning and lately, the use of artificial intelligence. These present both risks and opportunities. Opportunities are abundant for increased audit efficiencies and transparency of transactions by public sector roleplayers, and thus for increased accountability. There are also risks for us being left behind due to lack of access to the required financial resources or for lack of standardisation and regulation on the use of such new technologies.

Strategic risks

Our strategic risk profile represents the top risks faced by the organisation managed at executive level and overseen by the independent audit committee. These are the risks that could fundamentally hinder us from achieving our strategic objectives, hence they receive priority attention at the highest level.

The implementation of the mitigations for the strategic risks identified in 2021-22 and 2022-23 was rigorously monitored over the year, periodically assessing the various risk indicators. We are satisfied with the efforts to mitigate risk and action that owners took to address risk exposure.

The residual mitigations are of a long-term nature as the strategic objectives extend beyond the performance period.

While we assess the movement of the risks continuously throughout the year, annually we hold a formal process of evaluation of the risks, considering all environmental factors that have the potential to impact the achievement of our ambitious #cultureshift2030 strategy.







Fundamentally, our strategic risk profile remained similar throughout the last few years. Mitigations to those risks have been in place since the 2021-22 financial year and as far as they remain relevant, we will continue with those actions. The strategic initiatives defined in the #cultureshift2030 strategy have been incorporated as mitigations, especially for risk 1 "failure to remain relevant and cause a positive impact through our product, insights or messages".

We have now identified the increase in cyber attacks on business globally to be applicable to us given our unrestricted access to our clients' business and personal information. Our approach to the risk mitigation is through both soft and hard controls. These include:

- continuously reviewing our IT security policy and relevant procedures
- technical staff training
- modernising our infrastructure
- enhancing security tools
- adopting ISO 27001

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



HOW WE ARE GOVERNED

AGSA executive committee
Corporate governance framework

38 39




AGSA executive committee



Deputy Auditor-General: Exco Chairperson





Sibongiseni Ngoma (47) Head of Audit: National



(Caretaking) Head of Specialised Audit



Mabatho Sedikela (46)
 Head of Audit: Provincial



Lindiwe Miyambu (50)
 Chief People Officer



Chief Financial Officer



Chief Technology Officer

The PAA gives both the auditor-general and the deputy auditor-general the authority to delegate their assigned powers or duties to any member of staff.

The executive committee (exco) assists the deputy auditor-general to manage the business affairs of the organisation, in line with the delegation of authority set out in the AGSA management approval framework. It also has the power to establish subcommittees to assist it.

Chaired by the deputy auditor-general, exco consists of the two heads of audit and the five chief officers.

Exco meets regularly during the year.





Experience

Vonani	Bongi	Mabatho	Polani	Phila	Solly	Lindiwe	Thami
CA(SA) Cisa CIA	CA(SA)	CA(SA) MCom. Tax	CA(SA)	BCom MDP PG Dip. DT	CA(\$A)	B.ED	CA(SA) MAP, MBA M Phil
Audit	Audit	Audit	Audit	IT Digital in banking & insurance	Audit Financial management Investment & banking services Mining	Management in human capital in the financial services sector	Audit Investigations, Financial management & analysis, Business risk & governance

Our diversity targets for black women exco members have been met.

Corporate governance framework

Our governance framework is defined by the Constitution, PAA, certain regulations issued in terms of the PAA and good governance best practices.

We fully adhere to most King IV principles, and partially comply with 8, 9 and 10.

In line with best practice, we rotate the members of our governance structures and perform annual independent reviews of their effectiveness.

We also regularly fine-tune our internal governance framework to enhance our leadership decision-making processes.



Standing committee on the auditor-general (Scoag)

Scoag consists of the following honourable members of parliament and political parties:

ANC

Mr SS Somyo (Chairperson) Mr JB Mamabolo Mr OM Mathafa Mr Z Mlenzana Ms PT Mpushe Ms C Seoposengwe Ms DJ Myolwa

AIC Mr SM Jafta **DA** Mr MH Hoosen Ms SP Kopane

EFF

IFP

Ms NV Mente Ms NKF Hlonyana (Alternate member)

Mr N Singh

From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023, Scoag considered the following AGSA briefings and matters:

- Local government audit outcomes and findings on covid-19 municipal relief funds
- Integrated annual report 2021-22, audit committee report, 2023-26 strategic plan and budget and audit directive
- 2021-22 national and provincial audit outcomes

Scoag Is an oversight mechanism aligned to the provisions of section 55(2) (b) (ii) of the Constitution and section 10(3) of the PAA.

Mandate:

- Advise the National Assembly
- Approve a financial reporting framework for the AGSA
 - Agree to the AGSA retaining any surplus at the end of a financial year
- Assist and protect the auditor-general to ensure independence, impartiality, dignity and effectiveness
- Recommend the conditions of employment of the auditor-general to the president
- Provide general oversight
- Confirm the five-year appointment of an independent firm of external auditors and review it annually
- Comment on a code of conduct for authorised auditors appointed by the auditor-general
- Comment on the mechanism for handling complaints on the manner in which the AGSA performs its audits
- Comment on the basis for calculating audit fees
- Comment on regulations that the auditor-general makes in terms of the PAA
- Consider the audit committee's concerns
- Consider the auditor-general's annual report, financial statements and audit report
- Consider the deputy auditor-general's reports on actual or pending under-collection, shortfalls on the budgeted revenue and overspending or expenditure not in line with the AGSA's budget
- Consider reports from the deputy auditor-general on decisions the auditor-general took that are likely to result in irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure



HOW WE ARE GOVERNED

Audit committee

The committee consists of three independent, non-executive members. Their skills and competencies are aligned to their duties and cover business, financial and risk management matters.

Members:

Mr John Biesman-Simons 69

CA(SA)

Appointed 2014 Attendance: 80% Experience: Audit partner for 13 years. Retired as a non-executive director of a JSE-listed REIT and chaired its audit committee for 10 years R364 197

Ms Grathel Motau 49

CA(SA) MPhil, AMP

Appointed 2022 Attendance: 100% Experience: Financial director with 26 years of business experience from both the public and private sectors in areas that include credit risk, financial analysis, financial management and reporting, auditing, corporate governance and supply chain R208 065

Ms Carol Roskruge 50

BSC Hons, MSC, MBL Appointed 2016 Attendance: 100% **Experience:** On an executive level in business strategy and operations with specialisation in supply and value chain management, and an experienced committee member in both the public and private sectors **R292 892**

Mr Cedrick Mampuru 48 CA(SA)

Appointed 2018 Attendance: 100% Experience: Over 20 years, in areas that include debt and equity structuring, auditing risk, and financial management R333 864

* Mr John Biesman-Simons' term as the audit committee chairperson came to an end in July 2022. Ms Grathel Motau took over his duties effective from 1 November 2022.

Mandate:

.

.

.

The audit committee reports to the auditor-general and Scoag on:

- whether our internal controls and risk management are adequate and effective
- its evaluation of our annual financial statements
- its opinion of whether our chief financial officer and finance function have the necessary financial expertise to fulfil their responsibilities.

The audit committee met five times during the year to consider, and where appropriate, approve:

- the status of our internal controls and risk management
- the progress of the internal and external audits
- the integrated annual report and audited financial statements
- our sustainability and performance information
- our internal and external audit work plan
- our recommendation to Scoag to appoint the external auditor and their work plan
- our chief financial officer and finance function's financial expertise to fulfil their responsibilities
- our complaints management
- the early adoption of new accounting standards
- the mitigation we implemented to improve quality control
- the resolution of the former chief people officer's allegations against the auditor-general

The AGSA remunerates external committee members in line with the approved South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (Saica) rates. Members are paid an hourly rate of R3 201 for the duration of a meeting and preparation.

The audit committee's full report is presented on page 116 of the report.



Quality management assessment committee

Mandate:

The QMAC oversees the system of quality control at the AGSA.

The QMAC assesses quality control based on input from our Quality Management business unit and the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA) standards and legal requirements, and that our audit reports are in line with accepted international standards.

All quality control monitoring review reports are submitted to the QMAC annually, which considers whether the Quality Management business unit has correctly evaluated the quality assessment ratings for those engagement managers subjected to a quality review. The QMAC also reviews and approves our policies and processes for monitoring quality compliance.

The QMAC consists of the auditor-general, the deputy auditor-general, a member of the audit committee and an additional external member co-opted by the auditor-general

Members

Ms Tsakani Maluleke (Chairperson) 48 CA(SA)

Appointed 2021 Attendance: 100%

Mr Vonani Chauke 47 CA(SA), Cisa, CIA Appointed 2022 Attendance: 100%

Mr John Biesman-Simons* 69 CA(SA)

Appointed 2013 Attendance: 100% Experience: Audit partner for 13 years. Retired as a non-executive director of a JSE-listed REIT and chaired its audit committee for 10 years R42 253

Ms Linda de Beer 49

CA(SA)

Appointed 2015 Attendance: 100% Experience: Serving on the boards of a number of JSE-listed companies, often chairing their audit committees R42 253

* Mr John Biesman-Simons' term in the committee was directly linked to his position as the audit committee chairperson which came to an end in July 2022. The 2022-23 financial year was the last year he served as a member of QMAC At its meetings held on 14 June 2022 and 28 June 2022 the QMAC finalised the assessment results of a sample of our audit engagements reviewed in the 2021-22 performance year. The main points of deliberation were:

- the policy on monitoring quality compliance
- the report on the legal assessment into the root causes for the quality failures allocated during the 2021-22 review cycle
- the quality review process and the assessment criteria
- the report on the peer review of internal quality reviewers
- a consideration of review reports, review statistics and overall results and final decisions on proposed ratings for the 2020-21 audit cycle
- the possible impact of findings on policies and procedures, and on quality policies
- scheduling 2022-23 reviews

Members are paid an hourly rate of R3 201 for the duration of a meeting and meeting preparation according to the approved Saica rates for 2022-23.

The results are reported under performance information on Audit quality management on page 96 of the report.



HOW WE ARE GOVERNED

Remuneration committee

Members

Ms Mpho Nkeli (Chairperson) 58

BSc (Env. Sci), MBA Appointed 2021 Attendance: 100% **Experience:** 15 years' executive experience, former chairperson of the Commission of Employment Equity. Heads the SPI Board practice **Paid: Nil**

Ms Tantaswa Fubu (Deputy Chair) 51

CA(SA), B Admin (Hons) Appointed 2022 Attendance: 80% **Experience:** 30 years across diverse sectors of the economy as an audit partner and on various ethics and transformation, and remuneration committees **R96 030**

Ms Nazlie Samodien 53

PDM, GRP, B Soc. Science Master Reward Specialist Appointed 2014 Attendance 40% **Experience:** 10 years of generalist HR experience and over 15 years in specialist remuneration **R12 804**

Mr Vonani Chauke 47 CA(SA), Cisa, CIA

Attendance: 100%

Mandate:

.

The auditor-general determines the terms and conditions of employment of all employees in the organisation.

The remuneration committee (remco) provides the auditor-general with specialised advice on remuneration and related issues, which is considered before the auditor-general makes a final decision.

It also provides advice on industry developments in remuneration frameworks. The remuneration committee is reviewed annually for independence.

In addition, the amended PAA mandates remco to make recommendations to the independent commission for the remuneration of public office bearers on the salary, allowances and benefits of the auditor-general.

During the year, the committee met three times to deliberate on the following areas:

- Annual salary increase and performance bonuses
- Financial position update and the scenario planning going forward
- Employee engagement plans
- Consideration of consultation process for the auditorgeneral's remuneration

Members are paid an hourly rate of R3 201 for the duration of a meeting and meeting preparation according to the approved Saica rates for 2022-23.

The committee's report can be found on page 120 of the report.





HOW WE ADD VALUE TO STAKEHOLDERS

Value delivered to groups of stakeholders	46
Value and benefits of supreme audit institutions	47
Value creation process	48





Value and delivered to groups of stakeholders

The people of South Africa

- Listening to conversations in the public sector and civil society organisations on areas of importance, acting in the public interest, and selecting areas of audit that have a direct impact on the lived reality of our people
- Making public the results of our audit work and providing them in a simple manner, which may enable citizens to hold their elected representatives and custodians of public resources accountable
- Being a model organisation that champions clean administration and transformation imperatives
- Executing our audits in the most cost-effective, efficient and economical manner

The legislatures

- Being a trustworthy source of relevant, independent and objective insight based on professional judgement and sound analysis
- Proactively identifying themes, common findings, trends and root causes
- Providing audit recommendations and discussing these with key stakeholders to enable them to oversee and support beneficial changes in the public sector culture and service delivery so that we influence improvement in the lived reality of our people
- Enabling them to be good custodians of the accountability ecosystem, strengthen their monitoring processes and intergovernmental relationships, and ensure appropriate and swift interventions for the people of South Africa

The executive and auditees

- Identifying instances of mismanagement and their root causes, and recommending improvements tailored to the business of the auditee
- Equipping them with a value-adding understanding of the status of their financial and performance management and compliance with relevant laws
- Delivering tailored audit and engagement programmes to assist them to improve their respective cultures so that they are characterised by performance, accountability, transparency and integrity
- Enabling them to bring about improvements in the audit outcomes of their portfolios by becoming more actively involved in key government matters, particularly those faced by state-owned enterprises and key service delivery portfolios

The auditing and accounting professions

- Allocating contract audit work equitably and meaningfully
- Building skilled and qualified professionals
- Creating a pipeline of black chartered accountants to transform the profession and economically empower black audit firms

Our employees

- Providing an invaluable opportunity to play a role in shaping the work of the public sector
- Creating meaningful employment and career development opportunities
- Providing fair, transparent, market-related and equitable remuneration and benefits

HOW WE ADD VALUE TO STAKEHOLDERS

Value and benefits of supreme audit institutions

As a member of Intosai, we subscribe to the principles entrenched in Intosai-P 12, which describe how supreme audit institutions demonstrate their value and benefits to the public sector.

The goal of supreme audit institutions is to make a difference in the lives of ordinary citizens in their respective countries. The overall philosophy of the standard centres around the following notion:

Auditing of government and public sector entities by SAIs has a positive impact on trust in society because it focuses the minds of the custodians of public resources on how well they use those resources. Such awareness supports desirable values and underpins accountability mechanisms, which in turn leads to improved decisions. Once SAIs' results have been made public, citizens are able to hold the custodians of public resources accountable. In this way SAIs promote the efficiency, accountability, effectiveness and transparency of public administration. An independent, effective and credible SAI is therefore an essential component in a democratic system where accountability, transparency and integrity are indispensable parts of a stable democracy. Acting in the public interest places a further responsibility on SAIs to demonstrate their ongoing relevance to citizens, Parliament and other stakeholders.

The extent to which a supreme audit institution is able to make a difference to the lives of citizens is contingent on three main pillars:

PILLAR 1

Strengthening the accountability, transparency and integrity of government and public sector entities

• Safeguarding the independence of the SAI

- Carrying out audits
- Enabling those charged with governance
- Reporting on audit results

PILLAR 2

Demonstrating ongoing relevance to citizens, Parliament and other stakeholders

• Being responsive to changing environments and emerging risks

• Communicating effectively with stakeholders

• Being a credible source of independent and objective insight

PILLAR 3

Being a model organisation through leading by example

- Ensuring appropriate own transparency and accountability
 - Ensuring own good governance
- Complying with a code of ethics
- Striving for service excellence and quality
- Capacity building through learning and knowledge sharing

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Value creation process

Business model

Section 36 of the PAA authorises the AGSA to access funding from multiple sources. These sources vary from our audit fees to money appropriated by Parliament, interest earned on investments, money obtained by alienation or letting of property and funds from any other source. The AGSA is legally authorised to accept donations and bequests if these will not result in a conflict of interest, and subject to a duty to disclose the donation or bequest in the annual report.

We are self-funded and derive our income by charging audit fees for the work required to complete an audit, based on publicly available, transparent and annually revised audit fees. A defined percentage of markup, or our sustainability margin, is used to maintain our operations.

Section 38(4) of the PAA authorises the AGSA to retain any surplus, or a portion of it, following consultation with the National Treasury and after approval by Scoag. When approved, we use this surplus to fund our infrastructure (capital) expenditure and for working capital requirements to ensure our sustainability. Any portion of the surplus that Scoag does not approve for retention is paid into the National Revenue Fund. Our business model is geared towards generating value.

The term 'capital' used in the integrated reporting framework refers broadly to any store of value that we use to deliver our mandate. We depend on the various forms of capital for our success. Their availability, quality and affordability can affect our long-term viability and, therefore, our ability to create value. They must be maintained if we are to continue creating value in the future.



HOW WE ADD VALUE TO STAKEHOLDERS

Business model summary



Our approach to funding has served us well since we formally adopted the funding model in 2009. However, the difficulty to collect outstanding fees from mostly local government and embattled SOEs increased due to the loss of revenue caused by the pandemic and other factors such as mismanagement, fraud, corruption and other forms of impropriety. We have heeded Scoag's call to review our funding model to remain financially independent and have commenced our research in that respect.





PERFORMANCE REPORT

The AGSA's #cultureshift2030 strategy	52
Performance information	54
Strategic goal: Insight	57
Strategic goal: Influence	67
Strategic goal: Enforcement (accountability report)	73
Strategic goal: Shift public sector culture	76
Strategic goal: Sustainably	81
Strategic goal: Efficiently	106





The AGSA's #cultureshift2030 strategy

Our aspirations and the way we intend to achieve them are formulated in our call for action, our strategic manifesto.

Our strategic aspiration is that over the next six years we will make a stronger, more direct and consistent impact on the lived reality of ordinary South Africans by sustainably and efficiently shifting public sector culture through insight, influence and enforcement.

We envisage that by 2030, the AGSA will be associated with a meaningful and sustainable shift of public sector culture to one of performance, accountability, transparency and integrity.

Change and strategic priorities

Culture refers to our shared values and way of life – it reveals the fundamental values of society.

It goes beyond simple, occasional compliance with rules; it appreciates – and encourages – the outcomes for which the rules exist. From culture flows behaviour. To fundamentally influence behaviour, therefore, it is important to fundamentally change the underlying culture. It is the solidity of culture within the public sector that we believe will ultimately drive a sustained, consistent and meaningful improvement in the lived reality of South Africans.

We intend to sustainably and efficiently shift public sector culture through insight, influence and enforcement.

We are practitioners in public sector accountability, transparency and integrity.

Audit is not all we are, audit is what we do to collect, analyse and translate data into information, and information into impactful insights.

Our work generates impactful insight; our influence translates insight into action.

Action stimulates and shifts our clients towards a culture of accountability.

A culture of accountability enables sustained, consistent and meaningful improvements in audit outcomes.

Sustained, consistent and meaningful improvements in audit outcomes translate into sustained, consistent and meaningful improvements in the lived reality of ordinary South Africans.

In that manner our constitutional democracy is strengthened.

We are not just auditors – we are independent, relevant and exemplary culture shifters.

Every single one of us.





THE AGSA'S CULTURESHIFT2030 STRATEGY

Our success is contingent on us excelling in the following dimensions in a coordinated manner:

Insight

Generate insight that illuminates understanding, drive action and yield results

Influence

Move stakeholders from mere awareness to action and advocacy of our messaging

Enforcement

Directly or indirectly recover resources lost to the state and taxpayers, and ensure consequences for wrongdoing

Shift public sector culture

Move critical mass of auditees to organisational cultures characterised by performance, transparency, integrity and accountability

Sustainably

Acquire, develop and maintain quantity, quality and configuration of resources and capabilities to achieve and sustain desired levels of impact

Efficiently

Unlock latent capacity in the existing resource base and lower the cost and effort with which we derive each marginal unit of impact

Ultimately, success is a shift of critical mass to cultures characterised by performance, accountability, transparency and integrity, driven through partnerships in an accountability ecosystem of stakeholders willing to use their advocacy and influence to create meaningful improvements in the lived reality of ordinary South Africans.

< ♠

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Strategic commitment	2022-23 target	Performance
Insight		
Increase the understanding of performance in the public sector by extracting unique insights and incorporating these into our products	Develop and approve plan for new insight-based products offered by the AGSA to various stakeholders	One-year consolidated audit plan was approved and is currently being implemented. The multi-year audit plan is in development and will be implemented from the next audit cycle
Increase our impact on the accountability culture of the public sector by increasing the level and extent of specified real-time audit work	Complete and report on 100% of planned real-time audit work	Report on the use of the flood-relief funds published
Increase our impact on the accountability culture of the public sector by implementing a differentiated audit approach	Approve differentiated audit approach and implementation plan Pilot approach at selected auditees	Three new audit methodologies developed, piloted and approved for use
Increase our impact on the accountability culture of the public sector by optimising our collaboration with CSO partners	Refine and institutionalise framework and implementation plan for collaboration with CSOs Report on outcome of programme	The framework for collaboration with CSOs approved and implemented





THE AGSA'S CULTURESHIFT2030 STRATEGY

Strategic commitment	2022-23 target	Performance
Influence		
Improve our stakeholders' sentiment about our contribution to the accountability culture in the public sector	Establish stakeholder sentiment baseline rating	The correct timing to distribute the survey is being reconsidered
Report on and implement measures to improve the performance of the accountability ecosystem	Develop and approve accountability ecosystem framework and implementation plan	A position paper defining our approach was developed and approved, together with an implementation plan. The development and implementation of a framework will be completed in the 2023-24 financial year
Auditor-general's assessment of the organisation's performance on influencing stakeholders to move to a culture of accountability	Meet the auditor-general's expectations on influencing stakeholders to move to a culture of accountability	The auditor-general has highlighted that the central coordination of key activities to drive culture shift requires improvement
Enforcement		
Finalise the implementation of the material irregularity process across all auditees	42% of auditees	Implemented as planned
Auditor-general's assessment of the organisation's performance in implementing the enhanced powers	Meet the auditor-general's expectations on the implementation of our enhanced powers	The auditor-general is satisfied with the effort and the achieved progress as described further in this report
Shift public sector culture		
Implement programmes to improve public sector accountability culture	Formulate and approve public sector culture baseline and related culture shift action plan	Plotting for the identified auditees completed

Strategic commitment	2022-23 target	Performance	
Sustainably			
Net surplus	1% - 4%	5,7%	
Sustainability margin	2 – 2,5 months' forward cover	1,65 months	
Promote the wellbeing of our staff	Develop and approve holistic employee wellbeing programme	A holistic programme was developed, approved and implemented	
% adherence to quality standards: audit engagements	80% - 90% (C1, C1#, C2 and C3 rating)	Achieved 84%	
% implementation of the International Standard on Quality Management (ISQM) 1	Full implementation of ISQM 1	Implemented and being one of the very early adopters of this strict standard	
Efficiently			
Improve our productivity level	Establish organisation's productivity level baseline and define measures for improvement	A suite of human capital related baselines was established	
Improve our audit efficiency	Establish organisation's audit efficiency baseline and define measures for improvement	All working papers were assessed and a few identified for optimisation, digitisation or automation	
Improve our business efficiency	Establish organisation's business efficiency baseline and define measures for improvement	A proprietary tool for assessment of business processes was developed. A bot demonstrating efficiencies was developed and implemented	



INSIGHT

Insight

Public sector institutions play a key role in delivering services, driving overall government programmes, and overseeing a substantial portion of the public purse. All these have a significant impact on the lives of citizens. As public sector auditors, we have committed to using our #cultureshift2030 strategy to provide strategic and informative insight, drawn from our audits, to enable government to take the right decisions and have a meaningful impact on the lives of citizens.

Analysing the trends in these audit outcomes helps to spark understanding and a commitment to act from all the roleplayers in the accountability ecosystem, as was done in the national, provincial and local government general reports.

General reports

Our general reports serve as a state-of-governance account of how our government – at all three tiers – has spent taxpayers' money during a particular period. We tabled two general reports during 2022-23.

As a result of rigorous scrutiny of the accounting records and other related information to support financial statements and performance reports of auditees, both general reports provide a comprehensive analysis of the audit outcomes and represent the main source of insight into the stewardship of public funds in the country. The reports are rich in statistics and real examples on the state of the audited entities, with a particular focus on key service delivery mechanisms. The value of the reports is rooted in the use of the information they present, hence, to drive culture shift and improvement in the public sector, we specifically detailed recommendations.

National and provincial audit outcomes

The audit outcomes showed a gradual upward trend since the term of the previous administration ended. We acknowledge the effort and attention that has been paid to improve the basics of financial and performance management and the disciplines that underpin a good audit outcome, especially a clean audit.



Audit outcomes of national and provincial audits



Audit outcomes of key service delivery portfolios



Audit outcomes of state-owned enterprises (excluding subsidiaries)



The key service delivery portfolios and state-owned enterprises (SOEs) are responsible for more than 30% of the expenditure budget, but consistently have the worst outcomes.

Auditees from these groups account for 58% of the outstanding audits and 31% of the modified audit opinions (qualified, adverse and disclaimed).

Audits outstanding





Local government audit outcomes

Local government is the sphere of government that is closest to our citizens because it provides basic services to the areas in which they live, and so directly impacts their lives.



Metropolitan municipalities (MM) R105,39 billion

R262,92 billion

Intermediate cities (ICM)

R35,60 billion

District municipalities (DM)

R83,21 billion

Local municipalities (LM)

R52,01 billion

Municipal entities (ME)

Metropolitan municipalities

commonly known as 'metros', are large urban complexes with populations of more than one million people. They account for the largest portion of municipal expenditure and serve the highest number of households and thus most of the people in the country.

Intermediate cities

are municipalities with large budgets that also serve a substantial number of households. They are responsible for all municipal functions not assigned to the district – in particular, local service delivery.

District municipalities

perform certain functions on behalf of local municipalities, such as integrated planning, infrastructure development, electricity provision and public transport. A district municipality may be a water services authority and may also provide financial, technical and administrative support services to a local municipality within its area as far as it can.

Local municipalities

can be large towns, small towns or rural areas. Just like intermediate cities, they are responsible for all municipal functions not assigned to the district, particularly service delivery to the residents in their designated geographical area. These municipal functions include water and sanitation services, electricity supply, refuse removal and road maintenance.

Municipal entities

are independent entities that perform municipal services on behalf of a municipality. Their financial statements are consolidated into those of their parent municipalities. Their audit outcomes are also important as they are responsible for a significant portion of municipal expenditure and service delivery programmes.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

While we are encouraged by the strides made to improve the audit outcomes of municipalities, most notably the reduction of municipalities in the disclaimer category, it nevertheless remains disheartening to report ongoing failures in accountability and performance at municipalities.

While there were fewer municipalities with disclaimed opinions, there were also fewer clean audits. The audit outcomes showed an overall stagnation or little improvement.



Improved audit outcomes or action taken towards resolving long-standing issues were mostly due to deliberate steps by municipalities to improve and strengthen their internal control environments and through the support and intervention of coordinating institutions. The material irregularity process also triggered actions such as the submission of financial statements that were previously outstanding.



Our general reports included a particular focus on service delivery with a significant shift in the way we wrote and positioned these messages. Along with key recommendations and commitments, the insight into the impact of these results are meant to stimulate understanding and discourse to encourage a shift in culture.



Our tailored audit insights:

- Published the water sector report and the Postbank cybersecurity report
- Engaged on different platforms regarding sector reports, e.g. at GIBS, and the infrastructure-built anti-corruption forum
- Issued the report on the rehabilitation of derelict and ownerless mines, which impacted the lived realities
 of the citizens by indicating the possible health and safety concerns for local communities around
 these mines
- Used PowerBI for enhanced data analytics and to identify key risks

Delivering audits through multidisciplinary teams



Using multidisciplinary teams on audits has become our best practice in delivering tailored audit insight to stakeholders. Multidisciplinary teams harness a diversity of skills and expertise to achieve complex audit objectives and gain a deep understanding of our auditees' businesses. This assists them in navigating the complexities of an environment associated with high expenditure and greater audit risk.

Multidisciplinary teams include professionals in information technology governance, risks and controls systems, data analytics, information security, financial fraud and investigations, and in key government sectors including health professionals, economists, education specialists and engineers. Their contribution to audit risk assessment, fraud data analytics and specialised auditee knowledge added comprehensive audit insight and improved audit efficiencies and effectiveness.

Data analytics

Audit analytics is fully integrated into the regularity audits as each audit is planned by an integrated team and data analytics opportunities are explored as part of the audit strategy. The audit planning meetings have become much richer; in the next financial year, we will be attempting to assess the extracted audit efficiencies resulting from the integrated planning.

While the use of computer assisted audit techniques (Caats) analytical procedures has been fully adopted across all our audits, due to limited capacity and capabilities, a phased-in approach has been adopted to scale up the use of PowerBI dashboards.

These dashboards visualise an auditee's business in a succinct and complete way thus serving as a risk identification tool.

This year we relied on external specialists to fully implement advanced analytics and to upskill our internal resources.

Data analytics tools

The success of audit data analytics is strongly dependent on the use of appropriate tools. We acquired a number of software licences for a tool that proved to be valuable in transforming and analysing vast volumes of data and enables us to perform more advanced analytics, including machine learning, enhanced spatial analysis and text mining.

The process of acquiring a specialised media monitoring tool is at an advanced stage. The tool will assist us in conducting real-time media and social media scanning in support of our audit risk analyses.

Increase our impact on the accountability culture of the public sector by extracting unique insights and incorporating these into our products

The OYAP serves as a tool to demonstrate our impact and relevance to citizens while affirming that we have heard their concerns and are appropriately responding to their lived experiences.

Data analytics benefits:

- identifying fraud risk and reporting it
- ingesting data analytics in an assessment of government projects to close the gap between audit outcomes and service delivery
- predicting potential material irregularities and supporting evidence for them
- driving integrated messaging
- driving business decisions

One-year audit plan (OYAP)

The integrated one-year audit plan (OYAP) was developed using insight from integrated environmental scanning information and the audit risk register to:

- determine the audit themes
- identify the required AGSA tools and levers that will enable audit execution
- highlight the key institutions and clusters
 where work will be undertaken

Data analytics strategy

Information is one of the major assets of the AGSA. As the amount of data generated by the public sector continues to grow, the importance of leveraging the collected data to improve the AGSA's capabilities for decisionmaking and analysis becomes critical. We conceptualised our approach towards the use of data analytics under one integrated strategy.

Stemming from the culture shift charter, the OYAP directs how we plan and carry out our audits to amplify a culture shift.

It ensures that our audit work responds promptly to changing environments and emerging risks, while also being tailored to our internal priorities. In March 2023, exco approved the OYAP for 2023-24.



As these audits are retroactive, this plan will be used when we audit the 2022-23 cycle.

The OYAP does not negate our mandated regulatory audits at national, provincial and local government, but rather elevates key matters that the audit portfolio must undertake in the respective cycles to foster and drive a culture shift.

It will also assist to approach our auditing in a more structured manner, resulting in efficiencies and an important straight point when deciding what to audit.

Real-time audits' impact on the public sector accountability culture

During the reporting period we received a request to conduct a real-time audit on the use of the funds allocated for relief of damages caused by the floods in KwaZulu-Natal and the Eastern Cape.

The accumulated know-how from this audit is immense. Without prior experience and a methodology on auditing flood-relief funds, and not being able to draw on any specialist knowledge from private audit firms, our audit team conceptualised and conducted the audit with only our existing resources.

As part of our intention to interact with other roleplayers in society, we engaged with local civil society organisations to improve our risk identification and risk response. An important factor for this audit was to approach it considering the perspective of those that were ultimately impacted by this disaster – i.e. the people on the ground. Our audit team visited the flood-damaged areas for better perspective of the audit risks and scope.

A special audit report that dealt with the immediate activities of the disaster relief was released and provided the public with insight on the response to the disaster. However, based on the slow rate at which funds were used, the auditor-general decided that we would audit this matter further during our annual audit. The respective provincial summaries in the general report on local government provided further insight on these real-time audits.

Our insight elicited an admission by government that it was ill-prepared to manage disasters, and it provided commitments that we monitor on an ongoing basis. Extensive interactions with all our stakeholders gave our reports the necessary attention and influence to compel action. Irregular contracts were stopped, payments to suppliers were withheld until the work was completed, prices were negotiated, and other measures were put in place to minimise leakage and maximise the use of public funds on actual disaster relief for the people affected by the floods.

We are formalising a more controlled and structured approach to such real-time audits.



Differentiated audit approach's impact on the public sector accountability culture

The differentiated audit methodology (DAM) project began in 2021-22 with three new methodologies:

- financial statements review
- audit of performance objectives (AoPO) findings engagement
- compliance findings engagement.

The objective was to provide an expanded menu of methodologies that can be applied to different categories of auditees, creating opportunities for efficiencies and a simpler audit process for specific auditees.

The project's main phase (pilot and implementation approval) was completed in 2022-23 with all targets met.

The pilots showed significant efficiencies in all spheres of our audits with no negative impact on the outcome and messaging and 100% approval ratings from pilot teams.

Lessons learnt from the pilots allowed us to fine-tune the methodologies, include a gap analysis and determine how the gaps will be closed.

We supported our audit teams by supplying training on all three new methodologies and developing:

- a working paper to assess suitability of the institution being audited for the DAM project
- a toolkit to enable discussions with these institutions, and
- an approval process.

Our collaboration with CSOs and its impact on public sector accountability culture

The cornerstone of South Africa's constitutional democracy is the Bill of Rights. In pursuit of strengthening democracy, we, in our unique way give effect to the fundamental human rights entrenched in chapter 2 of the Constitution. The missions of most CSOs are in some way linked to basic human rights. They are therefore ideally positioned to feed insight about basic human rights, citizen experiences and service delivery expectations into our audit work.





Benefits of SAI-civil society engagement

While we originally intended to manage our relationships with CSOs at an institutional or sector level, it is now clear that there is a need to institutionalise these relationships at a business unit and engagement level. To do so, we developed a streamlined framework for collaboration with the CSOs:



Most of the objectives saw good traction during the year:

- Basic processes to identify CSOs for engagement at BU level and a basic reporting functionality to keep track of the engagement were used throughout the year
- Basic use of CSO insight as inputs into the audit cycle planning processes (environmental scanning and risk assessment) worked well
- Using CSO insight on sector work was fully implemented. The work was also used to inform the related messaging (including standalone performance audit work) main examples of this were using CSO insight in the flood relief audit processes and on the metro financial health, indigent debt and equitable share analysis
- An enabling toolkit to support the work of the CSOs was made available and enhanced as needs evolved

Overall, we are very satisfied with the progress we made in this aspect of work.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Leveraging the work of the commission into state capture

In the prior year, we reported on our interest in the investigative work of the Judicial Commission of Inquiry into State Capture, led by Chief Justice Raymond Zondo, as it has direct relevance to our audit work. The commission's report highlighted the role of the public sector auditor in identifying and preventing fraud, corruption and other forms of impropriety.

Once the commission's report was published, we launched a project to analyse the observations, findings and recommendations of the commission, which culminated in our own report to the President of the Republic. We made a number of commitments which we since have factored into our audit work to enable the audit teams to have a better line of sight of the indicators of capture.

Conclusion

We used all our intellectual resources to deliver insight that is relevant, actionable and focused on improving lives of ordinary South Africans.

While comprehensive audit plans have always been in place, we have now begun to align our audits with a long-term plan to ensure relevance, consistency and continuity of audit messages, to demonstrate transparency of our choices, and to allocate limited organisational resources to auditing what matters and what will have an impact on service delivery as the vehicle to improving lives of people.





INFLUENCE

Influence



To influence a culture shift in the public sector, we must maintain meaningful relationships with our strategic partners in the accountability ecosystem. Our interactions cover a range of topics that focus on driving change towards a culture of performance, accountability, transparency and integrity.

During our engagements over the past few years, we have actively promoted the need for all roleplayers in the public sector to diligently discharge their responsibilities to ensure maximum positive impact on the success of our country and on the lives of the people of South Africa. We called the network of stakeholders an accountability ecosystem. These stakeholders have a mandate or responsibility (whether legislative or moral) to drive, deepen and insist on public sector accountability, and form an ecosystem due to their mutually reinforcing connections. We encourage our accountability ecosystem roleplayers to work together with an awareness of how their respective roles influence both the roles of others within the ecosystem and the ecosystem at large.

To fully develop and understand the accountability ecosystem concept and the various connections, roles and responsibilities we undertook wide-ranging research and consultation. The knowledge and understanding gained was captured in a position paper to generate a common understanding of the accountability ecosystem within the AGSA. The paper not only sets out the various roleplayers, their mandates and envisaged roles in shifting the public sector culture, but also supplements the philosophy of the accountability ecosystem with the enabling behaviour required for the system to function optimally. The next step in the process is to set up a task team to develop an accountability ecosystem framework, which will allow for structured engagement with and among the roleplayers, as well as reporting on the overall performance of the system.

Stakeholder engagements

Our stakeholder engagements remained focused on driving impact and change in line with our strategy. The engagements were planned carefully and in a systematic way, considering up-to-date environmental insights, platform selections and targeted key messages for each stakeholder.

Constitutional engagements

Overall, we engaged with constitutional stakeholders to give them an understanding of the audit outcomes, the key failures that lead to disappointing outcomes and material irregularities, and the areas that need to improve. Another important objective of these interactions is to obtain commitments to drive improvements. We undertook 681 tailored engagements (130%) against the annual target of 524.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



To achieve the required culture shift, we must maintain meaningful relationships with our strategic partners in the accountability ecosystem. Such relationships are governed through a memorandum of understanding or agreement. Our interaction with those partners is a direct way to share our insight and the aspirations of the #cultureshift2030 strategy.

One of these key aspirations is to foster a culture that encourages competence, in which officials know their work.

National School of Government

Our relationship enables us to influence this agenda by collaborating on matters of professionalising the public sector (as stated in the government's National Framework towards the Professionalisation of the Public Sector), including its various training and induction programmes.

South African Association of Public Accounts Committees

Through our relationship, we are part of the planning team for the 2023 Southern Africa Development Community Organisation of Public Accounts Committees annual conference, annual general meeting and 20th anniversary celebrations to be held in Durban in October 2023.

South African Local Government Association

We continue to work on governance training programmes and share insight in webinars. Our participation in the Salga coordinated platforms led to the successful induction of all new councillors, and customised capacity-building initiatives for MPACs as part of phase II of the councillor induction programme. At year end, only three provinces, Gauteng, Mpumalanga and Northern Cape completed this leg of the capacity-building programme.

National Treasury

This is one of the key standard setters for financial reporting frameworks and a custodian of the national, provincial and local government financial management legislation.

Within the National Treasury we regularly interacted with the Office of the Accountant-General, the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer and the National Treasury Internal Audit Support.

Our goal in engaging with these offices is to resolve contentious technical issues arising from our audits. These discussions aid in improving the consistency of responses as well as the manner in which auditors and auditees apply these resolutions. We also contribute to and comment on standards, templates, procurement prescripts, guidelines, and other technical documents.

Department of Performance Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME)

After the closeout of the performance information task team in November 2021, we continued with bilateral meetings with DPME. The objectives are to deliberate on performance management, reporting and auditing issues identified and to influence DPME in their coordinating and oversight role over strategic and annual plans of government.

This year, we shared insight and gaps identified in relation to the completeness of the Medium-Term Strategic Framework outcomes versus key indicators included in plans for key sector departments and their impact on actual service delivery. We also shared insight, findings and challenges identified at national and provincial departments in their preparation of draft annual performance plans for 2023-24.

To ensure a seamless stakeholder engagement experience for the AGSA when Cabinet was reshuffled, profiles of the new ministers and deputy ministers were produced to assist in planning the best way to land their key messages. Our observation reports provided detailed feedback on stakeholders' reception of our messages, their concerns and advice for improvements for future interactions.

We continued to enable oversight during the 2022 budget review and recommendation reports (BRRR) engagements by sharing the audit outcomes and providing rich insights to drive understanding and action. From the BRRR engagements, we observed that our investment in enhancing the capabilities of portfolio committees and committee support staff is yielding positive results.

Standard setters

Accounting Standards Board

The board is responsible for developing and maintaining the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and advancing financial reporting in the public sector.

Our engagements provide insight on implementing auditing and accounting considerations when setting the GRAP standards. Our key priorities for this year was to provide input on formulating new standards and reviewing existing standards, with a focus on matters that have led to disputes and legal actions in the past.

PERFORMANCE REPORT

Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors

Our objective in engaging is to facilitate public sector audit insight in developing standards and guidance for auditors. We participate in its quarterly meetings of the Committee for Audit Standards, steering committee and subcommittees, which include the Public Sector Standing Committee, Regulated Industries and Reporting Standing Committee and Sustainability Standing Committee.

We held ISQM benchmarking engagements, and gathered information on all relevant and innovative solutions and proactive quality support.

We also found that auditees often sought second opinions from audit firms on matters already covered by our audit opinions.

Before delivering a second opinion, the IESBA, Saica, and IRBA code of ethics requires firms to communicate with the auditor (AGSA). The firms who provided second opinions on a majority of the conflicts did not comply with this code requirement.

We raised this issue before the IRBA Public Sector Standing Committee, which resolved to address this matter through a project proposal to the IRBA ethics committee.

Formal trilateral meetings

The formal trilateral meeting is between the AGSA, the National Treasury and the chief executive officer of the ASB. The objective is to strategically collaborate to improve financial reporting, accountability systems and transparency, and to give direction to technical specialists.

Engagements this year focused on sharing our strategy to locate our partners in the accountability ecosystem, and we shared our dispute resolution mechanism.

Professional bodies and associations

Institute of Internal Auditors South Africa (IIASA) – Public Sector Committee (PSC)

Regular engagements were held with the IIASA PSC to support capacity-building initiatives for internal auditors in the public sector. Key insights on using the work of internal audit were shared, and the outcomes of the discussions were used to identify areas for practical application guidance for the AGSA auditors. A key outcome for this reporting period is the guide on communication opportunities between internal and external audit which was issued in response to work done with the IIASA PSC.

Public Sector Audit Committee Forum (PSACF)

The AGSA is a founding member of the PSACF together with the Institute of Directors South Africa (IoDSA), IIASA, Saica, Institute of Risk Management South Africa (IRMSA), National Treasury and the Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA). The PSACF is involved in capacity-building initiatives for audit committee members in the public sector.

We participated in the PSACF by sharing our insights in the areas of internal audit and audit committees. We also supported the PSACF with a number of initiatives to improve the effectiveness of audit committees.

A key outcome of the work that we did during this year was sharing the key themes on internal audit and audit committee from the Zondo Commission on State Capture to influence relevant guidance paper topics in the coming year.

Improve our stakeholders' sentiment about our contribution to the accountability culture in the public sector

Seeking feedback from stakeholders is an important activity for a supreme audit institution. During the reporting period we were able to reflect on the timing of a survey given the stage of execution of our strategy and the upcoming general elections. We considered the areas that require feedback from stakeholders and the possible questions to be posed to the various groups of stakeholders. In search of a completely independent survey of stakeholder views, we have appointed a service provider who is designing the survey, and will execute and publish the results in 2023-24.

Non-constitutional stakeholder engagements

Recognising the importance of engaging the entire spectrum of roleplayers in the accountability ecosystem, we put a lot of effort into professionalising and standardising our engagements with non-constitutional stakeholders. These stakeholders have been identified over the years as integral partners to improving public sector accountability. Consistent messages aim to increase their awareness of our work and how it translates into improvements in the lived experiences of people.

All public engagements profiled the #cultureshift2030 strategy, calling on stakeholders to join us in influencing a public sector culture shift that improves accountability and uses public resources efficiently, while strengthening the reputation of the accountancy and auditing profession.

Use of media and social media to promote the public sector culture shift

We have continued to receive balanced and prominent media coverage from both earned and associative media mentions. The highlight of this trend was when Daily Maverick – an authoritative and much-read thought shaper on good governance – voted the AGSA the South African Institute of the Year.

In its citation on why its readers – who are mainly influential thought leaders, professionals and experts in various fields – voted for the national audit office, the news agency notes in part that "It [AGSA] has increasingly flexed its accountability muscle and got accounting officers to toe the line of good governance."

It is encouraging that news agencies are embedding the culture shift tone and terminology in their reporting, a seed that is continuously and strategically infused in all externally-bound AGSA messages such as media statements or responses. Independent social media analysis further indicates that the organisation continued to receive positive reportage during the release of our flagship audit reports such as the provincial and national, and local government, general reports. We used our selected media platforms as conduits to help influence a public sector culture shift towards wholesale good governance.

After releasing the general reports, interviews were given to mainstream and regional media agencies.

We continued to enlighten journalists about our culture shift strategy and the importance of activating the roleplayers in the accountability ecosystem. We also drive messages about our extended mandate. In partnership with the Institute for the Advancement of Journalism (IAJ), we hosted a workshop for more than 20 Western Cape journalists on how they can report in a developmental manner that will influence good governance in the public sector.

Messages meant for journalists (and by extension the public) were simplified to ensure better understanding of not only the audit jargon, but also the issues hindering public sector efficiency.

While it is still early to measure the effect of the new #cultureshift2030 strategy in the media, it is worth noting that media agencies have started using related terminology such as accountability ecosystem in their reporting jargon – indicating our influence in framing AGSA messages.

Social media platforms were used extensively to educate citizens and spread messages on government performance. Initiatives supporting our image as an employer and profiling our leaders also featured on the social media platforms. We continually simplify our products to deliver crisp and clear messages that are easy to understand and clearly guide the audience to action. Our narrative is complemented with visuals and images to strengthen our messaging. These messages empower citizens, giving them the ability to steadily be informed and active citizens that question those in key positions about their inaction and apathy to their roles and its impact on our country.


ENFORCEMENT

Enforcement

(Accountability report)



Implementing the material irregularity (MI) process (our enhanced powers)

Over the past four years we have increasingly implemented all the elements of the material irregularity concept and increased the number of auditees at which we implemented the material irregularity process. We focused on auditees where we could have the greatest impact, using our resources optimally to ensure the quality of our processes.

The overall aim of our enhanced powers is to:

Instil a culture of accountability

Improve the protection of resources

Enhance public sector performance and encourage an ethical culture Strengthen public sector institutions to better serve the people of South Africa

Definition of material irregularity and expanded powers



INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

PERFORMANCE REPORT

For more on our expanded powers and the material irregularity process visit the MI explained page on our website.

In 2022-23 we expanded our work significantly for the 2021-22 audit cycle by implementing the material irregularity process at 202 public sector institutions that we audit in national and provincial government and 170 in local government, in line with reaching our target of 42% breadth of implementation.



While expanding the breadth of our material irregularity process, we also began to focus on its impact.



ENFORCEMENT

The statistics of assets recovered and losses prevented, and the change in behaviour, point to the success of the material irregularity process. At the same time, we enhanced the material irregularity methodology and guidance to streamline the process and strengthened our collaboration and relationships with public bodies such as the Special Investigating Unit (SIU) and the Public Protector. It is important to reflect that we have not observed any legal challenges emanating from the material irregularity process implementation, which is an indirect indicator of the good design and application of the process.

Collaboration between our regularity auditors and our specialised audit services helped to strengthen the quality of the material irregularities raised.

Our technical specialists developed or updated guidance to support the audit teams on a variety of topics, and specifically in areas where we are building expertise such as matters relating to substantial harm to the general public or a public sector institution, or misuse of a material resource. We continued to mitigate against potential risks to our audit quality during the material irregularity process by subjecting selected audits to independent reviews, and widely sharing the lessons learnt throughout the organisation.

We established an MI think tank to continuously enhance the material irregularity process, explore potential macro-environmental based MIs and ensure better stakeholder relations and communication protocols.

Case Management System (CMS)

The CMS was a key milestone for the organisation as the system is critical for streamlining the material irregularity process, reducing audit inefficiencies and mitigating risks linked to the management of the large number of material irregularities as we increase the breadth of implementation.

The rollout of this system to the end users is in progress and we look forward to realising the intended benefits in the next financial year.

Challenges in the implementation of the material irregularity process

The challenges that hampered us included:

- Instability in public sector leadership positions
- Requests for extensions on implementation dates that caused delays in the material irregularity process
- Delays in investigations referred to public bodies
- Delays in public bodies signing memorandums of understanding (MoUs)
- Delays in obtaining information that extended the time auditors spent on an audit

Conclusion

The implementation of our enhanced powers continues with the intended speed and at the desired quality. Directly or indirectly, we have begun to observe that resources lost to the state have been recovered and consequences have been applied for wrongdoing. We are encouraged by the observed impact of our material irregularity process. Our intention is to review the process in its entirety, to assess the supporting policies and regulations, and to continue strengthening our capacity for implementation. Our various platforms of engagement have helped increase stakeholders' understanding of the material irregularity process, our role in identifying material irregularities, and the responsibilities of other roleplayers. Multi-year audit planning and our work with various roleplayers in the accountability ecosystem are complementary mechanisms that we will widely leverage to identify and process impactful material irregularities.

PERFORMANCE REPORT

Shift public sector culture

To address the twin challenges of poverty and inequality, the state needs to play a transformative and developmental role. This requires well-run and effectively coordinated state institutions staffed with skilled public servants who are committed to the public good and are capable of delivering consistently high-quality services, while prioritising the nation's developmental objectives.

If the public service is to deliver on its part of the constitutional promise, it must embrace a culture of performance, accountability, transparency and integrity. It is not until such a culture is entrenched within the public service that we will begin to see consistent, meaningful and sustained improvements in audit outcomes.

Shifting public sector culture requires us to enhance our effectiveness at pulling the appropriate levers within the scope of our mandate and resources. At the same time, we seek to forge and strengthen partnerships with, and exercise our influence on, stakeholders with the scope, mandates and resources to pull other levers in a manner that complements our efforts.

Establishing the existing cultures in our auditees' environments

During this period, we worked to establish the status quo, i.e. categorising the culture of our auditees based on well-defined, consistently applied indicators. We sought to reach a shared understanding of the definitions of performance, accountability, transparency and integrity. These definitions will guide our assessment of the status of public sector institutions, determine the focus of our work to provide insight and apply the right level of enforcement, engage our stakeholders in the accountability ecosystem, and inform the way in which we express ourselves in our reports.

We also established the measurement principles, developed detailed plotting criteria based on our definitions and categorised them into four cardinal areas.



SHIFT PUBLIC SECTOR CULTURE



Deals with financial reporting and financial health (transparency and performance)



Deals with compliance with legislation (accountability and integrity)

_\\

SERVICE DELIVERY

Deals with planning, reporting and delivery (transparency and performance)



ETHICS, FRAUD AND RESPONSIVENESS

Combines most of the behavioural areas (accountability and integrity)



The categories of public sector culture form a culture shift continuum that spans from doing harm to doing good. These criteria for there categories are summarised as follows:

	Financial management	Service delivery	Compliance	Ethics, fraud and responsiveness
DOING GOOD	 Good financial health Correlation between achievement of targets and use of budget 	 All key service delivery performance targets achieved 	• No non-compliance with legislation	 Strong ethical culture set by leadership Controls in place to prevent fraud and corruption including cybersecurity controls
DOING NO HARM	 No/trivial budget overspending Budget and grants spend in accordance with purpose No/trivial fruitless and wasteful expenditure No/trivial financial losses (including asset impairments and abnormal water/ electricity losses) 	 High congruence between performance plan and mandate/ public expectations (including those identified through public participation) Achieving 80% of key service delivery performance targets 	 No/trivial irregular expenditure (excluding budget overspending) No non-compliance material irregularities 	 No fraud indicators or risk identified No ongoing investigations by public bodies No fraud/theft/breaches material irregularities No/trivial unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure opening balance High percentage of previous year audit recommendations implemented
DOING THE BASICS	 No material misstatements in submitted annual financial statements (unqualified) Going concern 	 Reported indicators and targets consistent with planning Planned indicators and targets passed usefulness criteria All standardised (C88/sectors) and medium term strategic framework indicators included in plans Reported achievement and variance explanations in annual performance report reliable 	• No material non-compliance with legislation	 Prior year unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure actioned Accounting officer or authority implements commitments made
NOT DOING THE BASICS	Material misstatements in submitted annual financial statements	Material misstatements in submitted annual performance report	• Material non-compliance with legislation	 Repeat conflicts of interests findings Material irregularities in recommendation phase No/limited action on previous year findings on possible fraud or improper supply chain management conduct Limited/inappropriate action on prior years' unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
DOING HARM	 Annual financial statements not submitted Disclaimer/adverse opinion Creditors payment days > 120 days Active institution (finance related) 	 Annual performance report not prepared Disclaimer/adverse opinion Active material irregularities on substantial harm to general public or to public sector institution (performance related) 	 Material limitation auditing procurement and contract management 	 Material irregularities in remedial action/ certificate of debt phase No action on prior years' unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

We classified 422 institutions (228 institutions in national and provincial government and 194 in local government), which included metropolitan municipalities, municipal entities, coordinating institutions, and departments and public entities that play a significant role in a number of value chains. These were plotted against the approved criteria.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

◀ ♠

422 government institutions plotted



None of the institutions that we plotted managed to fall in the category of "doing good" and none of the local government auditees managed to achieve even a "doing no harm" rating. This sets the bar high, which is firmly consistent with our message that a shift in culture to performance, accountability, transparency and integrity is urgently required.

This is a tough starting position, given our ultimate vision for the success of our strategy: a minimum of 30% of institutions that we audit shifting to "doing good" by 2030, with less than 10% in the "doing harm" category.

Culture shift charter

We developed the culture shift charter as a tactical approach to driving at least 30% of the public sector institutions that we audit towards a meaningful and observable shift to "doing good" by 2030. This mapping exercise is the first of its kind and we will continue fine-tuning our understanding and concepts as we implement our strategy. Engagement with the public sector institutions is paramount to creating individual, customised programmes for improving their unique cultures. Plotting and progress along the culture shift continuum will be included in the 2023-24 management reports.

The charter brings together cohesive and complementary strategic initiatives, outlines the levers for each strategic goal, and highlights the changes in our own organisational mindset required to enable a culture shift.

The key strategic initiatives outlined in the charter include:

INITIATIVE 1

Systematically positioning all institutions on the culture continuum

INITIATIVE

Crafting and activating the accountability ecosystem for specific group of auditees

INITIATIVE 3

Identifying coalition partners

INITIATIVE 4

Using differentiated audit methodologies to achieve optimum benefit for the auditee and stakeholders

PERFORMANCE REPORT

The culture shift charter was designed to be implemented in the 2023-24 financial year, with further development and enhancements in subsequent years. For the 2022-23 cycle, we identified the insight, influence and enforcement levers for deployment in targeted value chains, metropolitan municipalities, intermediate cities, and among the disclaimer and clean audit clusters in local government. Since a one-size-fits-all approach is not effective in changing public sector culture, our audit teams are customising the levers for each public sector institution, based on their indepth knowledge of the institution's environment, to ensure optimum impact.

The charter provides a detailed list of the levers; however, a few examples are presented below:

Insight:

We produced an integrated annual audit plan for the 2022-23 cycle to guide scoping, messaging, resources and tools for our audit planning, execution and reporting.

Influence:

We developed the public sector landscape to identify key roleplayers in government. This will assist us to direct our accountability messages to relevant stakeholders.

Enforcement:

We defined the concept of a high-impact material irregularity and developed principles to support our auditors in identifying impactful material irregularities. This was added to the material irregularity manual.

For the 2023-24 financial year, we expect to get buy-in and commitment from public sector institutions on walking the journey with us, to shift from where they are plotted to where they need to be. We will also develop and implement institution-specific action plans that detail the specific levers that need to be deployed for that institution, giving due consideration to the principles in the culture charter.

Conclusion

For the first time we have defined our understanding of the categories of public sector culture around the four aspects of performance, transparency, accountability and integrity. We have completed our detailed initial plotting of institutions that we audit from selected sectors and value chains.

We realise that the low starting point for the majority of our auditees may present a challenge to the achievement of our vision for the performance of the public sector. We appreciate the clarity around such a starting point, as it clarifies programmes that we need to implement to not only support and encourage our auditees to move up the culture shift continuum but also to provide the necessary support to other roleplayers in the accountability ecosystem.

Plotting on the culture shift continuum is an iterative process. We will therefore schedule regular checkpoints to refine the defined criteria, to develop adequate processes and guidance for embedding the culture shift continuum concept. Individual plotting results will be discussed with each institution to allow them to create plans for improvement.



SUSTAINABLY

Sustainably



Financial performance

Our funding model is premised on the organisation being commercially viable and financially independent. This model ensures that our financial administration is sound, our cash flow is properly managed, and our internal controls, systems and processes are intact.

The organisation has leveraged the benefits of this model to remain solvent and cover operational and capital expenses, including our technology requirements.

We produced a fair set of financial results given South Africa's financial constraints, but look forward to audit efficiencies resulting in less audit work being assigned to private audit firms.

Audit income

Our actual audit income for the year ended 31 March 2023 was R4 583 million (2021-22: R4 395 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 4%. We managed to contain the increase in audit fees using efficiencies derived from pooling staff between national and provincial business units and continuous improvement in productivity and recoverable rates (own hours' revenue).

The pooling resources initiative is being institutionalised, realising R221 million (2021-22: R120 million) in audit income. This approach will allow us to increase revenue generation and optimise operating costs. Towards the end of the 2022 financial year, we introduced the recoverable Ahluma centre. Through Ahluma, we could retain audit seniors or audit clerks and create opportunities for these young professionals to work with multiple business units and gain a diverse skillset.

They, in turn, could contribute by executing our audits instead of private audit firms. In its three months of operation, Ahluma produced revenue that equates to a R20 million saving on outsourced private audit firms.

Our overhead expenses of R1 405 million are 19% above the previous year's expenditure of R1 180 million. The increase was mainly driven by inflation, personnel costs for capacitating some business units, course fees and study assistance, as well as key initiatives to support our #cultureshift2030 strategy. We are committed to keeping overhead expenses within budget by enforcing stringent spending controls and implementing cost-cutting measures to mitigate any potential income loss in the future.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Working capital

In this financial year, we formed a credit watchlist committee to improve existing collection initiatives. The committee's primary responsibilities include managing the watch list (a list of all debtors with accounts that are 90 days past due), suggesting creative collection techniques including ringfencing and overseeing the litigation process.

The AGSA debt book closed at R1 080 million, up from R1 060 million in the same period last year, and represents 24% of total revenue (2020-21: 24%).



Of this debt, R371 million or 34% is owed for 120 days or more, mainly by auditees in financial distress.

The improvement in local government debt is due to our intensive collection activities, which entailed settling outstanding debt through ringfencing and our tighter collection target.

Debt collection

We anticipate that the quality of our debt book will improve as we continue to enforce collections in line with our accounts receivable policy and the PAA. We made notable strides in collecting debt by implementing the following strategies:

Debt collection strategies

- Enhancing our collection targets
- Continuing engagements with the National Treasury, which resulted in R76 million being paid to resolve the two-year funding shortage for 1% debtors. This was in addition to the R72 million received during the course of the financial year.
- With effect from 1 April 2023, we will receive the full 1% allocation from the National Revenue Fund. We estimate the amount we receive will increase from an annual average of R72 million to R123 million.

We continued to use ringfencing and litigation strategies to boost collections. We collected R60 million (2021-22: R53 million) through ringfencing agreements (R49 million) and short-term payment plans (R11 million). This project is still regarded as beneficial since it helps certain debtors catch up on previous debt while paying current debt.

Summary of the debt collected through ringfencing agreements

Financial year	Ringfencing agreements	Ringfenced amount	Amount paid
2022-23	11	R128 million	R60 million
2021-22	17	R107 million	R53 million



The effort to enforce debt collection through litigation collected R199 million, compared to R156 million in the same period last year.

Summary of the debt collected through litigation

Financial year	Litigation cases	Litigated amount	Amount paid
2022-23	55	R246 million	R199 million
2021-22	30	R231 million	R156 million

The payment of post-retirement medical aid liability

We partially paid the post-retirement medical aid liability by offering a buyout to 337 members (91%). The buyout, implemented in the third quarter of the financial year, contained a 20% bonus for accepting the offer. Of those approached, 258 members accepted the offer, which cost R42 million, including a R7 million bonus. Most of these were paid out in the 2022-23 financial year.

The post-retirement medical aid obligation of R49 million has reduced by R36 million (or 74%) to R13 million as of 31 March 2023.

Safety margin and net surplus

Working capital management is crucial to ensure that we have enough cash to pay our expenditure and debts when they fall due. Debt collections and paying our suppliers on time is also very important.

Our bank balance closed at R707 million (2021-22: R770 million), which translates into a margin of safety of 1,6 months compared to a target of 2 to 3 months. The buy-out process of the post retirement medical aid liability and settling more creditors to reduce our liabilities has contributed to the low margin of safety. Our net surplus increased from R40 million in the previous financial year to R263 million. This increase was as a result of cost optimisation strategies as mentioned in this report. The increase in our net surplus will assist to preserve our liquidity and financial sustainability as we continue to navigate the difficult economic and fiscal challenges.

Conclusion

Our financial viability and independence will continue to be solid for the foreseeable future and will be able to respond well to unforeseen circumstances. Going forward, we will direct our efforts towards attaining our #cultureshift2030 strategic goals. This will necessitate improving our financial management system, automation and integrated business processes.

Human capital performance

The AGSA invests a great deal of effort into acquiring and developing the type, quantity, quality and configuration of resources and organisational capabilities necessary to drive our public sector culture shift and high-impact outcomes.

AGSA workforce profile snapshot 2022-23



While our employee numbers decreased by 77 from last year's total, reflecting the limited number of CTA graduates in the market for our trainee auditor intake, our young professionals development programme resulted in an additional 162 newly qualified CAs(SA) who were supported during their qualification journey.

The staff voluntary turnover rate (excluding trainees and staff on short term contracts) was 9,98% for 2022-23. Although this reflects an increase of 4,11% from last year, it is in line with the industry benchmark of <10%. Our staff remains our most valuable asset. Creating an environment to promote engagement and contentment will allow our employees to flourish and achieve their full potential, for their own and the organisation's benefit. We believe that promoting good health and wellbeing can be a core enabler of employee engagement and organisational performance. Wellbeing relates to all aspects of work life including physical, emotional, financial, social, career, community and purpose elements.

Promoting staff wellbeing

Informed by our business insight, we developed holistic wellbeing initiatives and interventions that could provide our staff with the tools to help them thrive, be resilient, safe and productive, and to improve their overall health and wellbeing.

We are on a continuous drive to foster an environment that enables employees to meaningfully contribute towards achieving our strategic aspirations. This means providing support for issues such as mental health, relationship problems, personal development, organisational and management issues, all of which continue to be prevalent, not only within the organisation but in similar industries and globally.

Understanding that the fear of not delivering and a rapid change in the new ways of working lead to more work-related anxiety, for both employees and leaders, we offered psychological support to empower them with better understanding of their locus of control. This intervention concentrates on the four elements of hope, efficacy, resilience, and optimism, all of which share an appreciation and positive evaluation of psychosocial events. The plan is to implement this initiative across the organisation by the 2023-24 financial year.



The corporate athletes programme is aimed at addressing executives' wellbeing concerns in a personalised way. This initiative was implemented to assist executives with their mental health and holistic wellbeing, and to embed the culture of wellbeing and value of care within our organisation.





Recruitment (talent acquisition)

The need to fill critical positions that impact the delivery of our mandate and strategic goal saw an increase in both internal and external appointments. Internal appointments of 351, reflect an increase of 75,5% from 2021-22 recruitment and 163 external appointments, excluding trainee auditors, were a 136% increase on last year.

The demand for graduates with Certificate in the Theory of Accounting (CTA) continues to increase and, post-pandemic, competition from international firms recruiting in the South African CTA market has grown bigger. This necessitates more agility and innovation in our recruitment practices. We appointed 182 trainees with CTA: 148 trainees commenced their training in the fourth quarter of the 2022-23 financial year, while 34 are scheduled to begin in the first quarter of 2023-24. This year's intake reflected a decline of 19% (43 trainees) compared to the previous intake of 225 trainees in 2021-22.

In response, we have introduced new attraction initiatives, which will form part of our broader talent acquisition plan going forward. We will also, for the first time in 2023, introduce a midyear intake of CTA graduates to accommodate for the initial shortfall in resourcing our audit business units.

Our attraction initiatives include:

- creating awareness of the AGSA value propositions such as competitive salaries and benefits, professional development, promoting a positive work-life balance
- providing insight to our values to showcase a diverse and inclusive workplace culture
- following innovative recruitment strategies, such as our talent-centric social media messaging campaigns, industry-specific events, webinars, publications and targeted outreach to diverse online communities
- partnering with universities and industry-specific associations to attract the best-fit talent with diverse skills such as auditing, data analysts, forensic accountants, and information systems auditors
- organising campus recruitment drives, on-campus events, and industry-specific competitions
- showcasing the diversity within the workplace and its commitment to retention, upskilling and career development
- marketing the AGSA as the largest CA training programme in the world and acknowledging the responsibility we have to continue building the best CA(SA) talent in South Africa

To enhance innovation and diversify our workforce we appointed talented individuals to strategic leadership roles in the field of digital skills. These digital and analytical skills have enabled us to leverage tools and techniques to create a data-driven enterprise. The hidden value in data science and predictive analytics can streamline and optimise the way we work.

Employer of choice recognition

We were recognised as the employer of choice in the public sector for the third consecutive year in 2022. Being voted the top employer in the public sector by graduates showcases the AGSA as an organisation that provides an uplifting working environment for graduates entering the workforce.

Talent management and rewards

The culture shift strategy calls for diversified skills and capabilities. We identified the need to create career journeys for professionals, and redesigned the performance management framework to focus on career advancement and progression. We benchmarked salaries against both the national market and financial services and discussed the outcomes with remco. The work will be completed in phases in the 2023-24 financial year.

Comprehensive consultations about changes in the pay structure, possible policy/procedural changes and voluntary benefit structure (group risk benefits) will be held and alignment with other people management processes ensured.

Our organisational culture change journey

Our collective commitment is to build an enabling and supportive environment that sets the platform for the #cultureshift2030 strategy. One of the key focus areas during this performance year was on the development of a bespoke cultural change programme using a trust model.

Cultural change programme

We successfully developed the overall content and related toolkits for all our culture initiatives that have been rolled out on various platforms.

A big part of the programme was the introduction of the change leadership framework that encourages our leaders to build resilience and capability at the individual, team and organisational levels to anticipate, prepare for and adaptively respond to constant change.



Learning and development

Employee training

Our training hours reduced this year, with employees spending on average nine hours less on training. We halted technical training for six months while the updated audit methodology for the ISQM 1 was being developed. We expect training hours to increase significantly with the updated methodology and the #cultureshift2030 strategy.

With a notable increase in the resignations of our state-owned enterprise auditors, our need for basic training in this area grew exponentially. In total, 549 employees attended 6 061 hours of state-owned enterprise training. Our plan over the next financial year is to develop initiatives that will ensure the sustainability of this capability.

Leader training

The executive and leadership development programmes (EDP and LDP) saw a steady stream of graduates with 27 executives graduating from the EDP and 114 leaders completing the LDP. The first 10 students in the LDP train-the-trainer model have completed their training and will focus on facilitating the manager development programme inhouse. This will save money on external trainers, upskill our employees and lead to consistency in training.

Young professional development

The management of our trainee auditors' path through their training is done against a well-considered tactical plan, which has been in place since 2021. Our support is for the chartered accounting, information system auditing and forensic auditing disciplines. The number of our young professionals decreased from 1 151 in the prior year as a decision was made to focus recruitment on trainee auditors with a CTA in 2023, which limited the annual intake.

We countered the lack of entrants with CTA by retaining a large number of those who had already completed their learnership. The numbers of auditors on the Certified Information Systems Auditor (Cisa) learnership decreased from 36 in 2021-22 due to a deliberate decision to pause while we take time to define our information systems audit strategy.

Young professionals in training at the AGSA

	Total		Saica		Isaca		A	CFE	
Ethnic group	İ	•	i	•)	ŧ		i	i.
African	300	471	287	446	7	15		6	10
Coloured	12	24	10	24	2	0		0	0
Indian	8	8	8	8	0	0		0	0
White	4	1	4	1	0	0		0	0
Total	324	504	309	479	9	15	_	6	10
Total M&F	8	28	7	88		24		1	6

In the 2022 academic year, exco approved a special CTA study support programme for trainee auditors. We invested R4,9 million (excluding lost revenue) in the programme which resulted in a humble 30% success rate for our AGSA candidates. We are now working on a more appropriate offering for the existing trainee auditors who are studying towards CTA. At Unisa, from which we source candidates with CTA, only 53 candidates passed nationwide (15% were from the AGSA). We are reconsidering the continued use of this programme. The Assessment of Professional Competence (APC) is the final test of competence in the chartered accountant journey and the penultimate exam. A total of 239 of our candidates succeeded, the third largest contributor to successful candidates in the country, i.e. 9% of successful CTA candidates come from our training programme. This proportion has increased steadily in the last four years.

Year	AGSA	Saica	% Of total
2019	149	2 024	7,36%
2020	61	1 653	3,69%
2021	308	3 549	8,68%
2022	239*	2 711	8,82%
TOTAL	757	9 937	

*These candidates were in the AGSA's employ as at 31 March 2023

Just at the end of the financial year, 31 March 2023, Saica released the Initial Test of Competence (ITC) results. Our candidates achieved a 53% pass rate (those writing for the first time achieved an 85% pass rate).

Currently, we employ a sizeable cohort of audit professionals:

	Total		Acca		Saiga		Cisa		Sai	ica
	M	F	M	F	M	F	M	F	M	
African	426	530	8	9	143	181	19	35	256	305
Coloured	48	31	1	1	13	6	3	1	31	23
Indian	61	45	2	2	20	11	5	1	34	31
White	112	85	5	5	55	26	11	4	41	50
Foreign	6	6	3	3		1			3	2
Total	653	697	19	20	231	225	38	41	365	411
	1 3	50	:	39	456		79	?	7	76



Bursary scheme

The AGSA external bursary scheme provides financial assistance to potential AGSA employees who are keen to pursue a career in the accounting and auditing profession. The scheme enables us to have access to skilled professionals for the execution of our mandate and strategy, as well as to support the transformation objectives of the chartered accountancy profession.

During the 2022-23 financial year we distributed R5,4 million to 36 academically gifted young people and provided opportunities to persons with disabilities, candidates selected from our schools support programme, as well as AGSA employee family members.

The Thuthuka development fund administered by Saica provides all-round, holistic support to talented African and coloured students who want to become chartered accountants. The AGSA-Thuthuka partnership continues to highlight the importance of the AGSA as a formidable training institution in the public sector.

We contributed R11 497 125 to Thuthuka for the 2023 academic year. In return, 32 Thuthuka candidates began their articles with the AGSA in 2023.

Transformation

Our transformation journey continues to evolve and, in support of our strategy, goes beyond compliance; we aim to contribute meaningfully towards building an inclusive society that is characterised by equitable opportunities for employment that embrace a diversity of skills, procurement processes that drive inclusive growth, strong partnerships with non-governmental organisations and community uplift programmes that reach the most vulnerable groups in society.

We have maintained a level 1 B-BBEE recognition status for the fifth year. Our success is attributed to ongoing commitment from our staff and leadership on this transformation agenda.



We continue to strengthen messages of diversity and inclusion through our employment equity forums. Webinars have become an important way of educating and empowering staff on matters such as prevention and elimination of harassment in the workplace, equity deviations and other difficult topics continue to be an area of focus.

In addition to building skills in the auditing and accounting professions, our trainee auditor scheme also aims to contribute positively to youth employment through our learnership programmes. We are accessing opportunities to partner with non-governmental organisations that support youth employment initiatives. Possible risks associated with such partnerships are actively managed.

Our contribution to socioeconomic development focuses on investing in educational programmes, social relevance and strategic relationships. Our school programme as well as our corporate social responsibility initiatives remained constant. Our donations to people affected by floods in the KwaZulu-Natal and Eastern Cape partnership with the Red Cross made a real difference.

We are investing in strategic relationships on transformation matters with professional bodies, audit firms and some of our auditees.

Achieving targets for employing people with disabilities remains a challenge. The matter is receiving our highest attention. Similarly, cost containment measures impact the availability of funds for training.

Enterprise and supplier development (ESD)

The objective of our ESD programme is to accelerate growth and the sustainability of black owned enterprises in the auditing and accounting industry by providing financial and business support to help qualifying companies overcome obstacles and increase their market competitiveness, and ultimately to create jobs and become sustainable.

The ESD programme runs over a five-year cycle. In March every year, ESD beneficiaries are assessed to determine which will proceed with the programme. In 2022-23, 24 firms began the programme.

Pamag Inc. a black women-owned firm graduated to supplier development. The assessment for firms ready to graduate out of the programme is still in progress and will be finalised before the new tender cycle.

The overall budget for the ESD programme for 2022-23 was R3 million, and was used in full. The main support provided to the firms aimed to align their operational infrastructure with our specifications.

Firm name	Amount spent	Reason for support provided
Masa Inc NUE Inc	R425 000 R875 000	 New office set-up for new branch New office set-up for new branch IT equipment Networking Software and infrastructure Office furniture and fittings for the new office
Thamani Inc	R600 000	 IT infrastructure for new office
Pamag	R435 000	 New office set-up for new branch
Mpako Harvest	R400 000	 IT equipment and office equipment
Maine Inc	R265 000	IT infrastructurePurchase of laptops



Employee relations

CCMA disputes by outcomes

- 7 disputes, which is fewer than last year
- 3 are still ongoing
- 3 were in favour of the AGSA
- 1 was withdrawn by the employee.

Our employee relations root cause analysis helps support business with proactive interventions for identified misconduct to avoid recurrences. Such interventions further drive an internal culture of transparency, care, trust, and accountability.

Working hard to address the identified triggers and prevent disputes, bolsters employee morale and ensures legal compliance.



Technology

Repositioned ICT function

Our ICT function underwent a series of changes in 2022-23 to form a sustainable technological foundation for our #cultureshift2030 strategy. The ICT function now forms part of the Digital and Technology Office (DTO) portfolio and delivers based on the approved novel DTO strategy, which aligns our technology investments with our strategic priorities.

It is built on four key pillars for supporting and enabling the organisation:

- enabling data-driven decisions
- strengthening our core operations
- improving our customer and user experience
- automating our business to bring about efficiencies

The strategy reinforces our ability to adapt and thrive in the ever-evolving digital landscape, emphasises innovation, strengthens cybersecurity and promotes agile IT governance.

A new strategic enterprise architecture and a revised ICT operating model and structure drove the formation of a future-fit unit with the right mix of IT skills. We are delighted to reflect that by March 2023, the ICT unit had filled 98% of all vacancies and is fully responsible for our IT infrastructure, its operations and supporting processes.

Major ICT strategic projects for the year included:

- Audit software programme
 - an audit software solution that facilitates efficiencies and elevates the quality of our audits and reporting
- Information technology service management tool - an industry-leading cloud-based system to manage ICT service desk requests and
 - radically improve the way ICT resolves these calls
- Mimecast services
 - aimed at an improved overall security
- **Firewall replacement**
 - to improve security



Resolving IT audit findings

We resolved 96% of ICT audit findings due in March 2023 in a significant improvement from previous years. The security environment was also improved to include the following:

- Security plan and user awareness programme to ensure the confidentiality, integrity and availability of AGSA assets, as well as protecting the privacy of our stakeholders
- ISO 27001 adoption readiness and Control Objectives for Information and Related Technologies (COBIT) assessments were included into the security plan
- Granting of access rights to authenticated users as well as ports and sites by the improved firewall
- Network level authentication on all servers to reduce the risks of denial-of-service attacks on our environment
- Monthly security patches deployed to all operating systems except during freeze periods
- Security operation centre service by external party to detect and prevent any malicious activities on the network
- Prevention of malware and intrusions from external sources and to report exceptions through antivirus with network intrusion prevention signatures on all our servers
- Encryption of the access from the web browser to the web server application and database
- Backup and daily backup checklist.

The unit is working on getting to the maximum resolution of audit findings and maintaining the clean control environment. Cyber and data security improvement is an ongoing process through the implementation of the approved cybersecurity plan.

A new digital transformation unit

The objective of our new digital transformation unit is to transform the business by using fit-for-purpose technologies. This will result in automating business operations, insight and unlocking efficiencies to create a sustainable business model.

The core strategic objectives include:

- collaborating to identify organisational initiatives that extract business value from technology investments
- implementing software robotics that mimic user behaviour and connect multiple fragmented systems and sub-processes through automation
- implementing business intelligence and analytics
- leveraging technologies to give machines the ability to sense, comprehend, act and learn to mimic and expand human capabilities
- migrating relevant applications and data to the cloud with minimum disruption to business operations.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Audit quality management

Ensure high quality of our audits

The quality of our audit work continues to be paramount as it ensures the credibility of our opinions and enhances our reputation. The work that we produce attracts significant attention, both from our auditees and from the public. We are mindful of the reality that our products and processes may be subject to increased scrutiny before the courts. We therefore make quality audits our priority.

System of quality management

The new ISQM standard came into effect on 15 December 2022. To comply with and adopt the standard within the prescribed timeline, we developed an effective system of quality management.



We used a project management approach to implement the ISQM to ensure that we were business ready to comply with the standard by the effective date. While we experienced challenges, we became ISQM compliant ahead of the 15 December 2022 deadline.

SUSTAINABLY

The ISQM 1 implementation required a mind shift in how we navigate from a perceived reactive and negative quality control space to new ways of managing quality that is proactive, preventative and ensures collaborative engagement and accountability.

We conducted a comprehensive and iterative change impact assessment and prepared for applying the ISQM by training staff on the principles to strengthen systems of quality management. This training reached 3 414 participants who spent a collective 6 690,17 hours on our eLearning platforms on the learning management systems (LMS), with a pass rate of 89%.

The information systems audit reimagine project aimed to redesign the current operating model and structure by conducting a skills gap assessment to ensure that the unit has the relevant future-ready IT auditing skills to meet the emerging technology demands and business needs. This project will continue into the 2023-24 performance year.



Initiatives to improve audit quality

- Audit quality indicators
 - provide an early warning of potential threats to audit quality
 - Proactive audit quality reviews
 - conducted by our technical audit support staff on specific areas in the audit files where audit quality risks have been identified to influence higher quality audit files. The audit teams resolved these findings prior to signing off the audit reports. Details of these findings were also shared across the organisation to ensure that similar audit quality matters are addressed on audits that did not undergo a proactive review

Remediation process

- to ensure that we have relevant, reliable, and timely information about the design, implementation and operation of the SOQM, and to take action to prevent findings from reoccurring

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 This year we subjected 64 audit engagement files for 63 engagement managers to a post-issuance quality review. We are proud to announce that we achieved a rating of 84% compliance with engagement quality standards for the 2022-23 performance year.

While this is a decline of 2% from our rating in the previous year, it is within the targeted achievement of 80% or more. We intend to improve on this year on year as we mature in the SOQM.



Overall, there has been a gradual and sustained improvement in the quality outcomes over the past five years, which can be attributed to our investment in specific initiatives that have been implemented and embedded in the organisation over the years.



Risk management

Strategic risks

The organisation's risk management processes are an integral and a fundamental tool for enabling organisational objectives and delivering on our strategy. During 2022-23, and as a consequence of the introduction of the ISQM 1, we reviewed and enhanced some policies and procedures – including our risk management policy – primarily to ensure that organisational risk management processes remain robust and proactively responsive to emerging environmental factors.

In developing and implementing the culture shift strategy, we set out to proactively identify strategic risks and implement measures to mitigate against the potential threats to the achievement of strategic objectives. We identified six strategic risks, including at the audit committee level, which has the ultimate responsibility of approving the strategic risk profile.

We are pleased to note that across the organisation and its various structures, there is an established culture of risk consciousness and intelligence. We believe that our collective attitude to risk management will safeguard the organisation and ensure its sustainability into the future. As depicted below, when the strategic risk profile was revised, a deliberate effort was made to ensure that there was an alignment between the strategic risk profile and the #cultureshift2030 strategy and its pillars or elements. While the strategic risk profile has not significantly changed from last year, the average exposure associated with the six risks has increased, with none of the risks rated as low.

The risks are mostly influenced by the following factors:

- Emerging environmental factors as a result of our scanning exercises
- Continuous risk identification and risk monitoring
- An assessment of performance
 indicators
- An assessment of our risk appetite measures.

We continuously identify, evaluate, mitigate and report on risks as an important element of the overall risk management approach. We also continuously review and monitor the mitigations. The table below outlines the key responses attached to the strategic risks. Some key responses are initiatives to the #cultureshift2030 strategy.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

PERFORMANCE REPORT

Risk description	Key response
Failure to remain relevant (high-impact outcomes) with regard to our product, insights or messages as well as our proactiveness	 Establish stakeholder sentiment baseline about our contribution to the accountability ecosystem in the public sector Formulation of a public sector culture baseline and related culture shift action plans Plotting of auditees on the culture continuum
Unfavourable employee experience impacting on the delivery of the mandate	 Establish a healthy and enabling organisational culture strongly expressive of the organisational values Establish and maintain target operating model Develop and implement an effective resourcing management model
Negative financial viability	 Review and redesign the organisation's funding model Acquisition of a fit-for-purpose audit software, to enable efficiencies Establish and maintain target operating model
Negative impact on the credibility of the AGSA	• Ethics maturity assessment to demonstrate high level of ethical behaviour and being seen to be ethical by stakeholders
Slow response to information technology needs impacting on efficiencies and achievement of organisational objectives	 Implement an enterprise architecture framework and principle Develop and enhance enterprise and audit process technology
Non-adherence to quality standards	 Develop and enhance audit processes, methodology and framework Periodic evaluation of the system of quality management (ISQM), and implementation of remediation process where appropriate

In view of the above, and other mitigations on the strategic risk profile, we are satisfied that when implemented, the initiatives will enable the organisation to achieve its strategic objectives.



Managing ethical and independence risks

Our approach to building a strong ethical environment and influencing ethical behaviour in the auditing profession and in the environment in which we operate is guided by our dedicated ethics strategic programme. Through it we strengthen our leadership's ability to deal with ethical issues and create mechanisms by which we will make our employees feel more valued and ensure that all AGSA employees, stakeholders, auditees and contractors adhere to and are held to the same standard of ethical conduct that is beyond reproach, in fact and in perception.

We proactively identify and respond to ethics risks by creating and sustaining an organisational environment with a common understanding and application of the AGSA's ethical principles, with the specific goal of strengthening the character and ethical resolve of our employees to be steadfast against temptation and undue influence. The International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA) and the International Standard for Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAI) 130 inform our ethical stance and are the foundation of our ethics management programme.

Our employees' personal interests are captured and managed through our declarations system and are monitored quarterly via exception dashboards.

The compliance rate for the 2022-23 financial year is 99,7%. The declarations outstanding as at 31 March 2023 relate to employees on maternity, sick and unpaid leave, who are expected to comply upon their return to duty. One outstanding declaration relates to a new member of staff whose details had not yet been captured on the system.

We had two confirmed ethical breaches for the year:

Summary of allegations	Ethical breach and actions taken
Complaint regarding the unfair allocation of work to a CWC firm	 The employee overlooked a specific private firm for the allocation of work Management implemented the recommendation in response to the outcome of this investigation
Suspected fraudulent payment of an employee's salary into a third-party bank account	 The employees did not follow processes in the bank verification and payment for this amount Management implemented the recommendation in response to the outcome of this investigation

The current ethics initiatives have allowed the organisation to instil adequate ethics risk management processes and to reach an AA maturity rating. The ESP intends to move the maturity rating to an optimal AAA.

The ethics programme also included ethics engagements with the firms contracted to perform audits on behalf of the AGSA and will be continued to ensure adherence, with the relevant provisions included as contractual obligations.

Organisation's risk culture

In response to the organisational risk culture survey conducted in quarter 2 and 3, we have drafted a training and change plan that will be rolled out over the 2023-24 performance period.

Some of the interventions that will be rolled out include the following:

- Hosting risk management workshop, that will be open to all our key stakeholders
- Facilitating a risk champion awareness initiative; that will include clarity on their roles and responsibilities and how to apply the risk management process within their business units
- Supporting the champions with their responsibilities, to enable them to realise their risk management goals (given that risk management is included as a performance measure in their IPCs)

Furthermore, a fraud risk assessment was developed after a fraud risk survey was performed with representatives from business.

Status of audit findings resolutions

Of the 39 findings from internal and external auditors issued in the 2022-23 financial year, 28 (72%) were issued to the ICT function, mostly as a result of issues identified during the IT security review, undertaken by the internal auditors. The other 11 (28%) were issued to the Finance and Risk and Ethics units.

Of the 39 findings, 27 (69%) have been resolved and 12 (31%) are in progress. It should be noted that one finding emanating from the IT security review, which has previously been closed, has since been reopened given that a vulnerability scan indicated that the finding was not resolved sustainably. The team is investigating a sustainable remediation action.

Adequacy and effectiveness of our internal controls

With the internal controls monitoring process, we have a notable reduction in the level of reported exceptions, at 406 (40%), demonstrating a significant improvement in adherence to defined internal controls, policies and procedures.

Although this gives us a level of comfort, we remain conscious of all identified issues and their related root causes. Most of the issues are because of late approvals (time) and movements of assets. It should be noted that the identified issues are usually resolved within 30 days.

We are therefore reasonably comfortable that exceptions are generally detected early and resolved timeously. In line with the organisation's digital transformation and automation efforts, the internal controls monitoring function is looking forward to implementing and embracing a new robot and a digital form to assist with improving efficiencies.

Status of compliance with the laws and regulations (mandatory or elective)

Our regulatory universe has no significant changes. We do not have legislation, standards or codes rated either critical or high; implying that our process on compliance management remains adequate and effective to mitigate against regulatory compliance risks.



Complaints statistics and trends

During 2022-23 we received 98 complaints. These were assessed and broken down as follows:

Out of scope Number
Referred to relevant authority46Audit tip-offs18TOTAL64
The majority of complaints are still reported through the AGSA's website (58). However, most of these are classified as out of scope and are reported on this platform due to the accessibility of the website or the public's misconception of the AGSA's role.
The remaining 34 complaints were in scope. These were broken down as follows:
In-scope Number
Audit related complaints (Category 2)10Combination of conduct and audit related (Category 2 and 3)2Conduct and administration of the office (Category 3)22TOTAL34

Changes to the complaints policy

On 1 November 2022, the new dispute resolution policy came into effect to address audit-related complaints. The scope of the dispute resolution policy is to address disagreements between the audit teams and those they audit, where these disputes are not successfully resolved by audit business unit leaders. These complaints will be resolved by the complainant escalating the matter to the head of portfolio of the respective audit team for efficient resolution.

Promote the whistleblowing channel

Our whistleblowing platform remains an effective channel to report complaints relating to the conduct of AGSA employees and the office administration. This is enabled by the whistleblowing platform being completely anonymous.

In addition, our other channels to report these irregularities include:

- The AGSA website
- A dedicated AGSA ethics email address (ethics@agsa.co.za)
- Stakeholder walk-ins (particularly at the head office building)

PERFORMANCE REPORT

Effectiveness of reporting channels

Whistleblowing cases received from speak-up	Cases received from the AGSA website	Cases received from direct email and walk-ins		
In-scope Out-of-scope 15 5	In-scope Out-of-scope 4 54	In-scope Out-of-scope		

Fraud prevention framework

The fraud prevention implementation plan was approved in July 2022 to support our Fraud Prevention Framework. The plan contains specific activities that were rolled out to the organisation to prevent the occurrence of occupation fraud. The majority of these activities have already been completed with the remaining activities being carried over into the new financial period.

Management of legal risk

Our ability to sustainably impact the lives of South Africans relies to a great extent on our independence. Attacks on our independence manifest in various forms. One is to disrupt our work and bring the credibility of our products into question. Our legal team is tasked with the responsibility to predict, prevent, identify and mitigate all legal risks that threaten our independence. Once a threat has materialised, the legal team defends our cases before the courts.

A change in legislation, court rulings that alter the law as we knew it, complex commercial transactions and employee concerns all create some form of legal risk or threat for the organisation. The most prominent, and possibly the most harmful are legal attacks on our audits.

During the 2022-23 financial year, our legal team identified jurisprudence and changes in legislation that affected our operations and the manner in which we execute our mandate. Our approach to these developments is one of proactive analysis and early preparation of the environment to ensure minimum risk of non-compliance when the changes in law take effect. When considering legal risk in the context of our audits, we have sharpened our ability to resolve disputes as soon as they arise, or as early as possible thereafter.

Judicial review proceedings against our audit products not only compromise our ability to meet our legislated deadlines, but also threaten the institution's guaranteed independent role in ensuring accountability, transparency and timely oversight by those charged with that responsibility. In 2022-23, the AGSA did not face any commercial legal attacks. We experienced legal challenges in the employment relations discipline and a handful of audits came under legal scrutiny.

The chief people officer (CPO) case

In June 2022, the former chief people officer (CPO) threatened the auditor-general with exposure of alleged 'wrongdoings' in exchange for financial rewards in a material ethical breach. The deputy auditor-general ordered an independent investigation by a prominent law firm, Bowman Gilfillan, into the threat and allegations. During the course of the investigation, the CPO's former employer shared information that indicated several acts of impropriety by the former CPO, acts that he never declared to the AGSA during or after his appointment. The CPO was charged in a formal disciplinary hearing with gross misconduct, breach of his suspension conditions and gross dishonesty. He was subsequently dismissed and his services at the AGSA terminated on 28 September 2022.



The Road Accident Fund (RAF) case

We highlighted in last year's integrated annual report the Road Accident Fund's (RAF) judicial review of our 2020-21 audit report. The RAF has subsequently withdrawn its appeal against the high court order allowing publication of the report. However, the RAF persists in challenging the auditor-general's decision to issue a disclaimer of opinion for the 2020-21 audit. The judicial review is set down for argument before the high court, and there is still no sign of withdrawal of the case.

The RAF's continued use of its accounting policy, based on an inappropriate standard, led to another judicial attack on an urgent basis to prohibit the auditor-general from publishing the 2021-22 audit report.

In dismissing the RAF's application, the court confirmed two fundamental principles:

- A legal attack against the submission of an audit report unduly hinders the auditor-general from performing her statutory duties and amounts to interference and, unless exceptional circumstances existed, would infringe on the principles governing the separation of powers.
- The Constitution demands swift, accurate and transparent reporting on the financial affairs of public entities. This requirement for transparent reporting, the judge argued, was even more acute in the current state of concern regarding the governance of public entities in the country.

Legal challenges are not only time consuming and costly, but also disrupt the normal course of the oversight process.

Legal challenges against the AGSA don't always originate from disagreement with the way we work or the results of our work. During the current reporting period, Sakeliga NPC brought an application in terms of the Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (PAIA) to gain access to the management reports of 154 municipalities for the financial years 2015 to 2022. Sakeliga also applied for an order to instruct the AGSA to make all management reports public going forward. We opposed this application on a number of grounds, including the impact that such orders would have on the ability and appetite of auditees to share information freely with the auditors. The high court ruled in our favour and confirmed that the Constitution did not require us to make our management reports public.

We encourage the users of our reports to engage in the rich information we report in our general reports. Our general reports contain auditee-specific insights that are adequate for the exercising of the rights of groups and individuals.

Conclusion and looking ahead

Our chief risk officer and his legal team identified and mitigated the legal risk that the institution faced, and safeguarded our ability to exercise our calling independently and without fear, favour or prejudice. We remain focused on closing the RAF review proceedings in respect of the 2020-21 and 2021-22 financial years and to keep our stakeholders informed. We similarly hope to close the review proceedings brought by the member of the executive council of the Department of Small Business Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (Destea).

We plan to review our litigation strategy during the course of 2023-24. The aim of this initiative is to ensure integration of our legal processes with the new audit dispute resolution process. The overarching aspiration is to eventually be free of any court challenges against our audits. This is not a pipe dream, if all relevant roleplayers in the ecosystem guide our auditees, support them, monitor their actions and use their enforcement powers in deserving cases.

PERFORMANCE REPORT



To operate efficiently we must use our existing resources to create greater value. However, to measure this value and the success of our efficiency drive, we must first establish baselines against which we will measure that success. The ultimate aim is to be able to use the same resource base to add greater value and impact while lowering the cost and effort of creating that value.

Establish the organisation's productivity and efficiency baselines

For this assessment we used the concept that productivity equals creating value. Increased productivity results in creating more value with the same resources or creating the same value with fewer resources.

The AGSA's total productivity (output) is a result of many interlinked factors and a reflection of our business model. The business model processes include our practices to optimise efficiencies in the people, processes, systems and capital (tools) areas.

Depending on the focus of the work, we have established various productivity and efficiency baselines. The overall productivity baselines include:



Analysis of the audit process

For the audit efficiency baseline, we looked at the audit process based on the AGSA's audit methodology, and rated inefficiencies and areas that would benefit from automation.



Overall, we reviewed 99 working papers of which 48% were found to be good candidates for automation and will be built into our customised audit software. Data points will be integrated across all business units that use these specific working papers.

Business efficiency baseline

We approached the establishment of the business efficiency baseline by investing in the development of a business process assessment framework with the conviction that a formal description and quantification of each business process is the best way to identify areas for improvement or automation.

While the main driver for this work is to minimise capital investment, time and resources, these are not the only factors that will be applied to a decision. At times, these drivers will show a negative return on investment but a strategic imperative will still require investment, such as digitisation to prevent reputational damage.

The process assessment framework was applied to the daily deposit process in the Finance business unit.

The resulting business case demonstrated the viability of the investment in the automation of this process which in turn resulted in the deployment of the first robot in our organisation.

The net present value of the automation of the daily deposit process over 60 months is expected to be over R1,6 million, or 20-times the improvement in speed and over 2 000 hours reduction annually. It will also significantly decrease the risk of misallocating deposits.

The next step is to form a productivity committee to track the improvement in overall productivity. The committee will also support or sponsor further research and analysis of matters related to productivity as the need for deeper or specific understanding arises.

Conclusion

Developing a comprehensive view of our resources and how they have been spread and used throughout the business was a first step towards identifying how and where to achieve productivity, audit and business efficiencies. However, with these efficiencies comes change.

An organised system's productivity is a reflection of the organisation's business and operating model. To improve our efficiency and achieve significant changes in our productivity we will have to review our operating principles. These include important systems of operation such as business units vs delivery centres, delivering value vs billing per hour, and blending human and technological resources vs human resourcing using tools.

Eventually, it will be important to redefine the productivity baselines for a business model that moves away from charging audit fees based on hourly rates and presence at the office activities.

While major changes in the business model might take place over a longer time, we must continue with incremental improvement to productivity as a normal business practice.






EXTERNAL ASSURANCE

Independent assurance practitioner's limited assurance report to Parliament on	
selected key sustainability indicators	112
Audit committee report	116
Remuneration committee report	120





INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE PRACTITIONER'S LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON SELECTED KEY SUSTAINABILITY INDICATORS

Report on selected key sustainability indicators

We have undertaken a limited assurance engagement on selected key sustainability indicators, as described below, and presented in the 2022-23 Integrated annual report of the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the report).

Subject matter

We have been engaged to provide a limited assurance conclusion in our report on the following selected key sustainability indicators, prepared in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 Standards.

Category	Key sustainability indicators	Scope of coverage
Economic	Application of the funding model. Amounts and initiatives in respect of: • Trainee auditors scheme • Preferential procurement • Corporate social investment	Republic of South Africa
Social	Amounts and initiatives in respect of: • Bursaries and scholarships • Rural schools programme • Social responsibility programmes • Enterprise and supplier development	Republic of South Africa
Cultural	Disclosures in respect of: • Employee profile • Diversity • Staff turnover • Ethics training initiatives • Employee wellness programmes • Employee relations	Auditor-General of South Africa
Stakeholder engagements	Disclosures in respect of: • Employees • Auditees • Constitutional stakeholders • Contract firms • Media • Professional bodies • Regulatory bodies • Citizenry • International stakeholders	Republic of South Africa



Deputy auditor-general's responsibilities

The deputy auditor-general (DAG) is responsible for the selection, preparation and presentation of the selected key sustainability indicators in accordance with the GRI G4 Standards. This responsibility includes the identification of stakeholders and stakeholder requirements, material issues, commitments with respect to sustainability performance and design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of the report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The DAG is also responsible for determining the appropriateness of the measurement and reporting criteria in view of the intended users of the selected key sustainability indicators and for ensuring that those criteria are publicly available to the report users.

Our independence and quality control

We have complied with the independence and all other ethical requirements of the Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors, issued by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA), that is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' International Code of ethics for professional accountants, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour.

Crowe JHB applies the International Standard on Quality Management 1, and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance conclusion on the selected key sustainability indicators based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence we have obtained. We conducted our limited assurance engagement in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That Standard requires that we plan and perform our engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the selected key sustainability indicators are free from material misstatement.

A limited assurance engagement undertaken in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised) involves assessing the suitability in the circumstances of AGSA's use of GRI G4 Standards as the basis of preparation for the selected key sustainability indicators, assessing the risks of material misstatement of the selected key sustainability indicators whether due to fraud or error, responding to the assessed risks as necessary in the circumstances, and evaluating the overall presentation of the selected key sustainability indicators.

A limited assurance engagement is substantially less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement in relation to both risk assessment procedures, including an understanding of internal control, and the procedures performed in response to the assessed risks.

The procedures we performed were based on our professional judgement and included inquiries, observation of processes followed, inspection of documents, analytical procedures, evaluating the appropriateness of quantification methods and reporting policies, and agreeing or reconciling with underlying records.

Auditor's responsibility (continued)

Given the circumstances of the engagement, in performing the procedures listed above we:

Interviewed management and senior executives to obtain an understanding of the internal control environment, risk assessment process and information systems relevant to the sustainability reporting process;

Inspected documentation to corroborate the statements of management and senior executives in our interviews;

Tested the processes and systems to generate, collate, aggregate, monitor and report the selected key sustainability indicators;

Performed a controls walkthrough of identified key controls;



Inspected supporting documentation on a sample basis and performed analytical procedures to evaluate the data generation and reporting processes against the reporting criteria;

Evaluated the reasonableness and appropriateness of significant estimates and judgements made by the DAG in the preparation of the selected key sustainability indicators; and

Evaluated whether the selected key sustainability indicators presented in the report are consistent with our overall knowledge and experience of sustainability management and performance at AGSA.

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing, and are less in extent than for a reasonable assurance engagement. As a result, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had we performed a reasonable assurance engagement.

Accordingly, we do not express a reasonable assurance opinion about whether AGSA's selected key sustainability indicators have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with GRI G4 Standards.

Limited assurance conclusion

Based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence we have obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the selected key sustainability indicators as set out in the subject matter paragraph above for the year ended 31 March 2023 are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with GRI G4 Standards.

Other matters

The maintenance and integrity of the AGSA's website is the responsibility of AGSA management. Our procedures did not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, we accept no responsibility for any changes to either the information in the report or our independent limited assurance report that may have occurred since the initial date of its presentation on AGSA's website.

Restriction of liability

Our work has been undertaken to enable us to express a limited assurance conclusion on the selected key sustainability information to the AGSA in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not accept or assume liability to any party other than AGSA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have reached.

Growe THB

RAAKESH KHANDOO PARTNER REGISTERED AUDITOR Rivonia 31 July 2023



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Introduction

This report of the audit committee (the committee) is prepared and based on the requirements of section 40 (6)(a) of the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA), as well as its terms of reference, which are reviewed and approved on an annual basis.

According to Principle 15 of the King IV code of governance, the governing body should ensure that assurance services enable an effective internal controls environment, and that these support the integrity of information for internal decision making and of the organisation's external reports.

The committee is pleased to present its report for the 2022-23 performance year, to the Standing Committee on the Auditor-General (Scoag) and all other stakeholders of the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA).

Committee governance

The committee is a statutory oversight structure, constituted in terms of section 40 of the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004. The committee is accountable to the auditor-general and Scoag.

The composition and meetings of the audit committee are outlined in section 3 of this report. In line with the PAA, all members of the committee are independent of the AGSA and have, in accordance with their statutory responsibilities, attended all committee meetings. Furthermore, the members have periodically declared their independence and that they are free of any conflict of interest in discharging their statutory duties throughout the reporting period.

The committee's terms of reference are developed in line with best practice. They outline its processes and responsibilities, are reviewed annually and are approved by the auditor-general, as necessary. Furthermore, the committee develops an annual work plan that directs its activities.

The committee accordingly conducted its affairs and discharged its responsibilities to enable it to conclude, as outlined in its activities below, that for the reporting period:

- The systems of internal control over financial reporting were adequate and operated effectively
- Risk management processes were adequate and effective
- The organisation has the appropriate resources and financial expertise to perform its duties



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Activities of the committee

External audit and evaluation of the annual financial statements

The committee assessed the external auditor's independence as required by section 39(2) (b) of the PAA and confirms that Crowe JHB (Crowe) is independent and not conflicted in any way. Furthermore, the committee is satisfied that the 2022-23 financial year audit was effectively conducted by Crowe. As such, the committee recommends their re-appointment for the 2023-24 financial year. According to section 39(1) of the PAA, Scoag has the authority to appoint the external auditor and does so, on an annual basis.

As required by its terms of reference, the committee:

- considered the audit approach and audit risks in approving the external audit plan
- reviewed the annual financial statements and agreed with management that the AGSA is a going concern
- considered the appropriateness of the accounting policies, accounting treatments, any significant unusual transactions and judgement areas
- reviewed compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the PAA
- considered and reviewed the management reports and the summary of unadjusted differences
- reviewed the audit report on the annual financial statements and the performance against predetermined objectives
- ongoing monitoring of non-audit services to ensure they are not significant in relation to the audit fees, to ensure the external auditor's independence is not compromised
- engaged with the external auditors in the absence of management, to ensure that the quality, credibility and effectiveness of the external audit process was maintained
- received confirmation that no pressure was exerted on the auditor to suppress any findings nor were there any scope limitations placed on their work
- considered all factors and risks that may impact on the integrity of information in the integrated annual report ("IAR") and that it presents the economic, social and environmental performance of the AGSA

Following the review of the management representation letters addressed to Crowe, and commentary to the annual financial statements and the IAR, the audit committee recommended that the AG sign off on the IAR and its individual components.



Internal audit

SNG-Grant Thornton (SNG-GT) are the internal auditors of the AGSA. The 2022-23 financial year was their first year of audit. The internal audit plan operates on a three-year rolling basis; all key finance functions of the organisation are covered at least once during the three-year cycle.

In accordance with its terms of reference and the internal audit charter, the committee:

Internal audit

- reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan and the internal audit charter
- considered reports from SNG-GT on the internal audit work performed throughout the year, and their annual written assessment, which concluded that the internal controls in the areas tested, are adequate and effective
- met separately with the internal auditor without management present to ensure that the independence, quality, credibility, and effectiveness of the internal audit process was maintained at all times; and received confirmation that no restrictions nor pressure was put on them to suppress audit findings.

The committee is assured that, considering the work done in the current year by the internal auditors, the systems of internal control in place at the AGSA are adequate and operating effectively, a notable improvement in the control environment has also been observed. The IT security controls were found to be partially effective. This is due to the identification of new vulnerabilities emerging from an environment review conducted during the year. These ongoing IT security reviews, together with a heightened awareness of the cybersecurity threat and more robust risk identification facilitate much needed focus in this area. It should be noted that the risk posed by the weaknesses in the IT security environment is receiving further attention through the ongoing closure of audit findings and initiatives in the new enterprise architecture work.

Risk management

Under the stewardship of a chief risk officer, the Risk and Ethics business unit (R&E) is responsible for coordinating the risk management function in the AGSA. The chief risk officer concludes that the systems of internal controls, risk management process as well as compliance with laws and regulations employed throughout the financial year by the organisation are adequate and effective to manage risks to an acceptable level.





INTEGRATED ANNUAL

REPORT 2022-23

The committee exercised oversight on:

- the identification of strategic risks of the organisation, where it monitored implementation of the mitigations agreed with management to manage the risks to an acceptable level
- review and approval of the strategic risk profile and risk appetite statement for the 2022-23 financial period, and monitored the organisation's performance in relation to the appetite measures defined
- received assurance in line with the 2022-23 combined assurance matrix ensuring that assurance is obtained for all material risk areas, and that assurance by the different assurance providers is adequate
- the assurance received from the internal auditors on the risk management function, financial and internal control environment, including fraud risk and compliance management systems

Furthermore, the committee approved the combined assurance matrix for application in the 2023-24 performance period.

Given the quality of the risk management and oversight processes in place, we confirm there is a robust risk management system in place. We believe that key material risks have been identified with clear management actions and are confident that the risk management system is functioning adequately and continues to mature.

Assessment of the finance function and the chief financial officer

The committee considered the composition, experience and skills set of the finance function as well as the performance and expertise of the chief financial officer and is satisfied that the function has the requisite capacity and appropriate skills to fulfil their responsibilities.

Key focus area

During the 2022-23 performance period, the committee's focus was on supporting the executive committee in implementing the #cultureshift2030 strategy and improving their information technology function. Another focus of the committee during the year under review was to review the recommendations emanating from various reports following the event involving the former chief people officer's allegations against the auditor-general, and ensure that they are appropriately addressed. The committee rendered guidance and support in this regard and is satisfied with the deputy auditor-general's progress to date. The committee remains available to provide the necessary support until all items have been remediated.

Conclusion

The committee concludes that the systems of internal control over financial reporting, as well as the risk management processes for the AGSA, are adequate and operating effectively. Key focus areas outlined above remain our guide in terms of optimising the environment of internal controls.

The committee recommended that the deputy auditor-general may sign the annual financial statements and that the deputy auditor-general and the auditor-general may sign the *integrated annual report 2022-23*.

Finally, the committee is satisfied that it has adequately discharged its responsibilities as outlined in various statutory and other governance documents during the current financial year.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Background

The auditor-general is responsible for determining the terms and conditions of employment of all employees in the organisation, in accordance with section 34(3) of the PAA.

The remuneration committee (remco) was established as an oversight governance structure to provide specialised advice to the auditor-general on remuneration and related issues, while the final decision-making rests with the auditor-general. One of its primary purposes is to ensure that the organisation's remuneration principles, policies and practices are fair and transparent so as to promote the achievement of strategic objectives.

Remuneration committee membership

To ensure adherence to good governance practices, the members of the remuneration committee are appointed for a period of three years subject to an annual review. No changes in membership have occurred in the 2022-23 financial year.

Members of the governance structures are remunerated in line with the approved South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (Saica) rates. This currently stands at R3 201 per hour.

An overview of the main provisions of the remuneration policy

The organisation has developed a remuneration policy, procedures and processes that are made available to all employees. Any amendments to the policy principles are communicated to employees following consultations (where applicable).

The AGSA's approach to recognising and rewarding employees is based on a total reward philosophy in which the benefits of working for the AGSA are considered in their entirety. These include financial and non-financial benefits, rewards and the working environment. The total reward policy has been designed to support the achievement of the organisation's objectives, reinforce organisational values and behaviours, and recognise outstanding contributions made by individuals and teams. The policy principles are implemented in accordance with the provisions of the organisation's management approval framework.

The AGSA has indicated that it will review its remuneration philosophy, strategy, policies, procedures and practices that will underpin the organisation's strategic aspirations as set out in the #cultureshift2030 strategy and will consult the committee in due time.

Remuneration of AGSA executives

The AGSA remunerates its executives in terms of the AGSA remuneration policy. The details of executives' remuneration are reported as part of the financial statements in section 7 of this integrated annual report.

Internal and external factors that influence remuneration

Remuneration considerations and decisions are based on a combination of external and internal factors:

- Sustainability of the organisation budget considerations and financial affordability
- Market relativity and industry market positioning
- Attraction, retention and employee engagement considerations
- Strengthening performance culture
- Consumer price index (CPI) / inflation
- Economic outlook



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Key areas of focus by the remuneration committee

Annual salary increase

On 1 March 2023, remco discussed the annual salary increase process for the 2023-24 financial year. The committee considered multiple aspects including financial affordability, existing policy principles for salary increases, market indicators and internal salary trends. Remco recommended a 5% salary increment for all employees, effective 1 April 2023, based on its considerations of the Cola adjustment policy.

An assessment of the cash flow affordability indicated that the AGSA could afford the salary increases and still be liquid, viable and sustainable going forward. The 5% salary increase would also ensure that the AGSA remains competitive in the market for talent attraction and retention.

Performance bonus consideration

The performance bonus scheme is used to recognise and reward the performance of employees who contribute towards the achievements of the organisation's goals. This is a short-term incentive, awarded in recognition of an individual's successful accomplishment of the goals set for the performance year. The payment of the performance bonus is at the discretion of the auditor-general.

Consistent with its mandate, the committee considered and debated the performance bonus proposal at its meeting on 27 July 2023. The committee resolved to recommend the exco proposal that no performance bonus be paid for the 2022-23 financial year.

Use of remuneration consultants

While the organisation strives to use its internal resources to deliver on remuneration initiatives, it should be noted that there have been areas of speciality where external remuneration reports were used due to the nature of benchmarking required.

Post-retirement medical aid (PRMA) liability

The PRMA is a historical employee benefit governed by the Audit Arrangements Act and Policy Framework on Medical Assistance. The AGSA has aimed to eliminate the financial liability associated with the postretirement medical aid subsidy benefit by offering to pay a settlement to all its beneficiaries.

All 372 (146 in-service, 226 external) beneficiaries were included in the offer. Of these, 35 external beneficiaries could not be traced. Of the 337 (146 in-service, 191 external) beneficiaries that were successfully contacted:

- (80,12%) 270 beneficiaries (137 in-service, 133 external) accepted the offer
- (12,46%) 42 beneficiaries (5 in-service, 37 external) rejected the offer,
- (7,42%) 25 beneficiaries (4 in-service, 21 external), did not respond in time

Overall, this endeavor has been a great success thanks to the number of members who accepted the offer.

Conclusion

The committee remains dedicated to providing guidance and advice on total reward and recognition strategies, principles and decisions, to align employee motivation with the organisation's strategy. The committee appreciated that staff remained committed to achieving the goals of the organisation.

> INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



Acronyms and abbreviations	124
International integrated reporting index	125
GRI content index	126
Sustainable development goals	130
eestalitable development geals	100





TABLE OF ABBREVIATIONS



INTEGRATED REPORTING INDEX

IIRC content elements	Major report sections addressing the elements
Organisational overview and external environment	 The auditor-general's message The deputy auditor general's Overview of performance Who we are Value creation process Strategic risks Conditions under which we operate
Governance	 Corporate Governance Framework External Charters, principles and initiatives that we subscribe to or endorse
Business model	 Business model Our value creation model Value & benefits of supreme audit institutions
Risks and opportunities	 Strategic risks Our value creation model
Strategy and resource allocation	 The auditor-general's message The deputy auditor general's overview of performance Who we are Value creation process
Performance	 Organisation's performance against predetermined objectives Value-adding auditing Visibility for impact Viability Vision and values driven
Outlook	 The deputy auditor general's overview of performance In the conclusion of each of the strategic goals: Value-adding auditing Visibility for impact Viability Vision and values driven
Basis of preparation and presentation	• Reporting profile

GRI CONTENT INDEX

The Guidelines for sustainable reporting of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards informed the content and format of the report, which meets the information and reporting requirements in accordance with the 'Core' version.

GRI	Description	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - strategy and analysis	
102-14	Statement from the most senior decision maker of the organisation about the relevance of sustainability to the organisation.	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - organisational profile	
102-1	Name of the organisation	
102-2	Activities, brand, products and services of the AGSA	
102-3	Location of head office	
102-4	National footprint of the AGSA	
102-5	Nature of ownership and legal form	
102-6	Geographic breakdown, types of customers and beneficiaries	
102-7	Scale of the organisation including • Number of employees • Number of operations • Net revenue • Quantity of services / products offered	
102-8	Workforce profile • Total number of employees (permanent) • Total number of employees (contract) • Workforce by employment contract and gender • State whether a substantial portion of the organisation's work is performed by contractors	
102-9	Description of AGSA's supply chain	
102-10	Report any significant changes during the reporting period regarding the organisation's size, structure or supply chain	

126

<

GRI	Description	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - organisational profile (continued)	
102-11	Report on whether and how the precautionary approach or principle is addressed by the organisation	
102-12	External charters, principles and initiatives that we subscribe to or endorse	
102-13	Memberships maintained at an organisational level	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - identified material aspects and boundaries	
102-46	Process for defining the report content and the aspect boundaries	
102-47	List of material aspects identified	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - stakeholder engagement	
102-40	List of stakeholder groups identified by the organisation	
102-42	Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders	
102-43	Organisation's approach to stakeholder management	
102-44	Key topics raised through stakeholder engagement	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - report profile	
102-50	Reporting period	
102-51	Date of the most recent report	
102-52	Reporting cycle	
102-53	Contact point for questions regarding the report	

. ..



ANNEXURES

GRI	Description	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - report profile (continued)	
102-54	Claims of reporting in accordance with GRI standards	
102-55	GRI content index	
102-56	Organisation's policy and practice on seeking external assurance	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures – governance	
102-18	Governance structures within the AGSA	
102-22	Composition of the highest governance body and its committees	
GRI 102 2016:	General standard disclosures - ethics and integrity	
102-16	 The organisation's ethical principle, standards and norms of behaviour such as code of ethics and code of conduct Ethical and independence requirements 	
GRI 103 2016:	General standard disclosures - disclosures on management approach	
103-2	Labour practices and grievance mechanisms	
GRI 401:	Specific standard disclosures - labour practices and decent work – employment	
401-1	New employee hiresStaff turnover	
GRI 403:	Specific standard disclosures - labour practices and decent work - occupational health and safety	
403-2	Occupational health - types of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and absenteeism, and number of work-related fatalities	



◀

GRI	Description
GRI 404:	Specific standard disclosures - Labour Practices and Decent Work - Training and Education
404-1	Average hours of training, per employee and by employee category
405-1	Diversity and equal opportunity • Workforce by region and gender • Workforce by grade, race and gender • Workforce by employment contract and gender • Workforce profile by race and age • Executive committee by race group
GRI 405:	Specific standard disclosures - labour practices and decent work - diversity and equal opportunity
413-1	Local communities • Socio-economic development initiatives

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

The sustainable development goals (SDGs) aim to ensure economic prosperity and an improvement in human well-being. Achieving these goals takes sound governance structures.

Our awareness of the SDG priorities in our own reporting is highlighted to demonstrate areas that are influenced by these goals.



NOTES

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



Physical Address: 4 Daventry Street, Lynnwood Bridge Office Park, Lynnwood Manor, Pretoria, SA Postal Address: PO Box 446, Pretoria, 0001 Telephone: 012 426 8000 Fax to Email: 012 426 8257 Email: agsa@agsa.co.za

Promoting a culture of **accountability**

